Public Document Pack

Annual Council
To all Members of Uttlesford District Council, you are hereby summoned to attend the
meeting of the District Council to be held as shown below to deal with the business set
out in the agenda.

Date:

Tuesday, 18th May, 2021

Time:
Venue:

7.00 pm
Council Chamber - Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden,
CB11 4ER

Public
Broadcast:

https://uttlesford.moderngov.co.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=159
&MId=5504

Chair:
Members:

Councillor M Foley
Councillors A Armstrong, H Asker, G Bagnall, S Barker, M Caton,
A Coote (Vice-Chair), C Criscione, C Day, A Dean, G Driscoll, D Eke,
J Emanuel, J Evans, P Fairhurst, R Freeman, N Gregory,
N Hargreaves, V Isham, R Jones, A Khan, P Lavelle, G LeCount,
P Lees, M Lemon, B Light, J Lodge, J Loughlin, S Luck, S Merifield,
E Oliver, R Pavitt, L Pepper, N Reeve, G Sell, G Smith, M Sutton,
M Tayler and J De Vries

Kind regards,

Dawn French,
Chief Executive
Public Speaking
At the start of the meeting there will be an opportunity of up to 15 minutes for
members of the public to ask questions and make statements subject to having
given notice by 12 noon two working days before the meeting. Please register your
intention to speak at this meeting by writing to committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
Public speakers will be offered the opportunity for an officer to read out their
questions or statement at the meeting, and encouraged to attend the meeting via
Zoom to readout their questions or statement themselves. For further information,
please see overleaf. Those who would like to watch the meeting live can do so
virtually here. The broadcast will be made available as soon as the meeting begins.

AGENDA
PART 1
Open to Public and Press
1

Remarks of the Outgoing Chair
To receive the remarks from the outgoing Chair.

2

Election of the Chair
To receive nominations and elect the Chair.

3

Chair's Statutory Declaration of Acceptance of Office
The Chair to make the statutory declaration of acceptance of office.

4

Election of the Vice-Chair
To receive nominations and appoint the Vice-Chair.

5

Vice-Chair's Statutory Declaration of Acceptance of Office
The Vice-Chair to make the statutory declaration of acceptance of
office.

6

Apologies for Absence and Declarations of Interest
To receive any apologies and declarations of interest.

7

Minutes of the previous meeting

5 - 26

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting.
8

Chair's Announcements
To receive any announcements from the Chair.

9

Political Balance 2021-22

27 - 35

To consider the Political Balance 2021-22 report.
10

Appointment of Members to Committees of Council 2021-22

To Follow

To appoint the Council’s committees for 2020-21 and agree the
nominations from the Group Leaders for Committee Chairs, ViceChairs, members and substitutes (to follow).
11

Appointment of Members to Working Groups of Council 202122

36

To appoint the Council’s working groups for 2021-22.
12

Appointment to the Essex Police, Fire and Crime Panel

37

To appoint a Member and a substitute to the Essex Police, Fire and
Crime Panel.
13

Establishment of Appointments Committee

38 - 40

To consider the report on the Establishment of an Appointments
Committee.
14

Council Procedure Rules: time permitted for questions to the
executive and Committee Chairs

41 - 59

To consider the report on Council Procedure Rules: time permitted
for questions to the executive and Committee Chairs.
15

Reports from the Leader and Members of the Executive
To receive matters of report from the Leader and members of the
Executive.

16

Questions to the Leader, Members of the Executive and
Committee Chairs (up to 15 minutes)
To receive questions from members for the Executive and
committee chairs.

17

Matters referred from the Executive and the Council's
committees
To consider any reports referred from the Executive and the
Council’s committees and receive questions and answers on any of
those reports.

18

Matters received about joint arrangements and external
organisations
To consider matters concerning joint arrangements and external
organisations.

60 - 102

COMMITTEE MEETINGS AND THE PUBLIC – MAY 2021 UPDATE
In light of the recent High Court judgement regarding the extension of remote meeting
regulations, Council, Cabinet and Committee meetings will now be returning to in-person
and will be held on-site from Thursday 6th May 2021. However, due to social distancing
measures and capacity considerations in line with the Council’s risk assessment, public
access and participation will continue to be encouraged virtually until further notice.
Members of the public are welcome to listen live to the debate of any of the Council’s
Cabinet or Committee meetings. All live broadcasts and meeting papers can be viewed
on the Council’s calendar of meetings webpage.
Members of the public are permitted to speak at this meeting and will be encouraged to
do so via the video conferencing platform Zoom. If you wish to make a statement via
Zoom video link, you will need to register with Democratic Services by midday two
working days before the meeting. There is a 15 minute public speaking limit and 3
minute speaking slots will be given on a first come, first served basis. Those wishing to
make a statement via video link will require an internet connection and a device with a
microphone and video camera enabled. Those wishing to make a statement to the
meeting who do not have internet access can do so via telephone. Technical guidance
on the practicalities of participating via Zoom will be given at the point of confirming your
registration slot, but if you have any questions regarding the best way to participate in
this meeting please call Democratic Services on 01799 510 369/410/467/548 who will
advise on the options available.

Facilities for people with disabilities
The Council Offices has facilities for wheelchair users, including lifts and toilets. The
Council Chamber has an induction loop so that those who have hearing difficulties
can hear the debate.
If you are deaf or have impaired hearing and would like a signer available at a
meeting, please contact committee@uttlesford.gov.uk or phone 01799 510410/548
as soon as possible prior to the meeting.
Fire/emergency evacuation procedure
If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave
the building by the nearest designated fire exit. You will be directed to the nearest
exit by a designated officer. It is vital you follow their instructions.
For information about this meeting please contact Democratic Services
Telephone: 01799 510410, 510369 or 510548
Email: Committee@uttlesford.gov.uk
General Enquiries
Council Offices, London Road, Saffron Walden, CB11 4ER
Telephone: 01799 510510
Fax: 01799 510550
Email: uconnect@uttlesford.gov.uk
Website: www.uttlesford.gov.uk

Agenda Item 7
COUNCIL held at ZOOM on TUESDAY, 23 FEBRUARY 2021 at 7.00 pm

C72

Present:

Councillor M Foley (Chair)
Councillors A Armstrong, H Asker, G Bagnall, S Barker,
M Caton, A Coote (Vice-Chair), C Criscione, C Day, A Dean,
G Driscoll, D Eke, J Evans, P Fairhurst, R Freeman, N Gregory,
N Hargreaves, V Isham, R Jones, A Khan, P Lavelle,
G LeCount, P Lees, M Lemon, B Light, J Lodge, J Loughlin,
S Luck, S Merifield, E Oliver, R Pavitt, L Pepper, N Reeve,
G Sell, M Sutton, M Tayler and J De Vries

Officers in
attendance:

D French (Chief Executive),B Ferguson (Democratic Services
Manager), R Harborough (Director - Public Services), J
Reynolds (Lawyer) and A Webb (Director - Finance and
Corporate Services)

MINUTE SILENCE
The Chair requested a minute’s silence in memory of Lesley Johnston, a long
standing and much valued member of the Environmental Health team. She
would be greatly missed by friends and colleagues at the Council.
A minute’s silence was held.

C73

PUBLIC SPEAKING
Public statements were made by Ms Thomas, Ms Roberts, Dr Ghosh and Mr
Darcy in relation to Item 17. Mr Ross, representing Stop Stansted Expansion,
had a statement read on his behalf. Summaries of their statements have been
appended to these minutes.

C74

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Apologies for absence were received from the Youth Council.
Councillor Criscione declared a non-pecuniary interest in relation to Item 12 as
he was a member of the Conservative Environment Network.

C75

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
The minutes of the meetings held on 8 December 2020 and 6 January 2021
were agreed as correct records of these meetings.

C76

CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

Page 5

The Chair summarised his engagements since the previous meeting and said he
had 50 miles to go before he had completed his charity walk. He thanked all
those that had supported him, and he had nearly raised £3000 for the Stroke
Association, his chosen charity. He also thanked officers and members for their
help in producing a Chairman’s Charter to reduce single use plastics in the
district. He said a further update would be provided in the next two weeks.
Finally, he added that UDC would be launching a “making a difference award” to
promote those who had selflessly helped others who were struggling throughout
the pandemic.

C77

REPORTS FROM THE LEADER AND MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE
The Leader spoke on the Stansted Airport planning application and said it was
correct for Counsel to solely focus on the appeal. He rejected the accusation that
the Council’s defence was “apologetic” and said it was not appropriate to
comment further at this time whilst the appeal was ongoing.
Councillor Pepper informed Members that the first Equalities Listening Event
would take place on 9 March 202. She thanked officers for their assistance in
setting up the event and encouraged people to get in touch and book a place to
participate

C78

QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER, MEMBERS OF THE EXECUTIVE AND
COMMITTEE CHAIRMEN (UP TO 15 MINUTES)
In response to a question from Councillor Criscione relating to the predetermination of the 3G Football Pitch grant, Councillor Armstrong said the
reason for haste was that the project had been ongoing for eight years and
required additional funding now to ensure their work had not gone to waste. He
said there was further funding available and he was happy to look at further
applications.
In response to a question from Councillor Dean regarding an Oxfam statement
that had been released in light of Investment Opportunity 12, Councillor Reeve
said he could not comment on specifics due to the commercial confidentiality of
the investment in question. However, he said all requests for borrowing were
brought to Full Council for all members to debate, and each opportunity was
considered in the light of what is in the public interest. He said a vote was taken
on each opportunity presented to Members and, that whilst not everyone would
agree with the outcome, the will of the majority prevailed and each decision had
been taken with the necessary consideration.
In response to a supplementary question, Councillor Reeve said Yemen had not
been discussed specifically but the ethical nature of the investment had been
deliberated on.
In response to a question from Councillor Lemon relating to the cost of dividing
the Council’s accounts due to the fact that the Statement of Accounts had yet to

Page 6

be signed off, Councillor Hargreaves said he was not aware of the specific cost
but a response would be circulated in writing.
In response to a question from Councillor Barker regarding the low level of
engagement to the consultation on the Local Plan, Councillor Evans said the
current process had been innovative in securing early consultation with the
public and he considered it a success.
The Chair indicated that 15 minutes had passed and he would only take
questions from those with their hands already raised.
Councillor Khan asked whether Councillors Lodge, Hargreaves and Reeve had
displayed appropriate behaviour at the previous Cabinet meeting in which a
member of the public was named. He asked whether they would apologise
publicly and whether they felt they were fit to serve as councillors. He said he
would accept a written answer.
Councillor Gregory asked Councillor Reeve whether he was aware of the
criticism faced by Oxfam for its own ethical standards by a range of monitoring
bodies.
In response to a question from Councillor Caton, Councillor Lees said the
administration would pay heed to the report and recommendations of the Ark
housing study that had recently been published.

C79

MEMBERS' SCHEME OF ALLOWANCES 2021-22
Diane Drury, the Chair of the IRP, presented the report outlining the proposals
for the Members’ Scheme of Allowances 2021-22.
Ms Drury said the IRP’s deliberations had been focused on the impact of Covid19 on the Council and the wider community. Specifically, the Panel had been
mindful of the economic impact; with unemployment on the rise, and the public
sector pay freeze, the Panel felt it was right that councillors demonstrate
solidarity and therefore a freeze in Members’ Allowances had been
recommended to Council. She said it was very important to note that there were
positives of the past year, and praised Members for rising to the challenge of a
remote decision making process. Furthermore, virtual meetings had provided
greater inclusivity, for both the public and members, and had cut costs in terms
of travel. Looking forward, she said that in future years there would be a need to
review the Opposition Leaders’ allowance. She concluded that in next year’s
review she hoped for more extensive dialogue with Members.
The Leader thanked the Panel and proposed the recommendation set out in the
report.
Councillor Lees seconded the recommendation and highlighted the fact that
Cabinet Members took a voluntary reduction in their allowance, to accommodate
the greater number of members within Cabinet.

Page 7

Councillors Sell and Oliver expressed support for the proposal.
RESOLVED to adopt the recommended scheme of allowances for the
year 2021/22 as set out in Appendix 1 to the report, effectively retaining
the current level of basic allowance and all existing special responsibility
allowances (SRAs).

C80

DRAFT CORPORATE PLAN 2021-2025
Councillor Barker declared a non-pecuniary interest as a Member of Essex
County Council.
The Chair took Item 10 next in proceedings and asked Councillor Reeve to
present the report on the draft Corporate Plan.
Councillor Reeve said the Corporate Plan had been thoroughly reviewed in light
of the new Local Plan and the impact of Covid-19, but had been found to be
robust and therefore largely remained unaltered. The only change from the
previously agreed document related to ‘Youth’; the previous iteration had
focused on the role of the Youth Council, while the updated document had
broadened the scope to Youth more generally. He proposed approval of the
Plan.
Councillor Driscoll seconded the proposal.
Members discussed the Corporate Plan and the following points were raised:










Were the Administration living up to their pledge of “open, honest and
responsible governance?”
The Corporate Plan Delivery Plan was the real issue at hand and it should
come to Full Council for approval.
Could the Plan commit Council to “locally led development corporations”
in terms of the Local Plan and the opposition of a second runway at
Stansted Airport.
There were no measures of success outlined in the document.
It was not in the remit of the District Council to tell the County Council how
to fulfil its statutory functions, such as school transport.
However, District councillors did have a role in holding the County to
account, as they were representing their ward constituents.
Support for young people in the District needed to go beyond the Youth
Council.
The Youth Council itself required more support but it had created a real
platform for young people since its establishment.
The use of the word “play” infantilised the document.

.
In response to these points, Councillor Reeve summarised as follows:


The Administration took the governance of the Council extremely
seriously.

Page 8








The principles raised in the Plan did not amount to pre-determination.
There was a need to engage with both young and elderly people in the
District and new corporate actions targeting these demographics would be
introduced. The importance of “play” was the Administration’s desire to
make Uttlesford a welcoming place for families.
The District Council would work together with County to ensure matters
progressed as they should.
The Youth Council was an important organ of the Council but the scope
should be widened to ensure all young people were supported.
Specific details would be included in the Corporate Plan Delivery Plan,
which would also include reference to other detailed plans, such as the
Economic Development Plan and Climate Crisis Action Plan. The
Corporate Plan set out the Administration’s priorities, the Delivery Plan
would set out how the Administration would achieve these goals.

The Chair moved to a vote. The proposal was carried 25 for, 9 against and 3
abstentions.
RESOLVED to approve the Corporate Plan 2021-2025.

C81

MEDIUM TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND BUDGET 2021/22
Councillor Hargreaves presented the report on the Medium Term Financial
Strategy and Budget proposals for 2021/22. He began by thanking the Director –
Resources and Finance and the Assistant Director – Resources for their
excellent work during an extremely challenging year. He summarised the
appendices that made up the budgetary reports and highlighted areas of note
throughout the documents. He proposed the recommendations as set out in the
report..
Councillor Coote seconded the proposals.
In response to a point of order raised by Councillor Criscione, the Chair said the
debate would focus on the budgetary papers as a whole, including the Council
Tax resolution, although a separate recorded vote would be taken on this
resolution.
In response to a question from Councillor Sell regarding the rise in employee
charges, the Director – Finance and Resources said the rise in charges related
to the future investment in the Planning Department, the Little Canfield business
park project and the yet unconfirmed 2% pay rise that would depend on a central
Government decision.
In response to a question from Councillor Sell regarding the Carver Barracks
running track, the Director – Finance and Resources said a report would be
considered at Cabinet in March that detailed the progress of works on the
running track, with a completion date due in September.
In response to a question from Councillor Sell in relation to Government funding
for the upcoming elections, the Chief Executive confirmed that £15 million for the

Page 9

local elections and £16 million for the Police, Fire and Crime Commissioner
elections had been made available to local authorities to ensure these elections
were Covid-19 safe.
Councillor Criscione said the Conservative Group could not support this budget
as he did not agree with the council tax rise in a time of economic hardship.
Taxes should remain low to ensure more money stayed in individuals pockets.
He asked why investments had not been located in the District and questioned
why the Council was asking for further money from its residents, and highlighted
the County Council’s decision to freeze council tax for another year. He
requested that Members reject the budget regardless of party allegiance.
Councillor Khan asked how much of the Climate Change budget had been spent
and where; how much money had been generated by the Council’s portfolio of
investments in the past financial year; and how would the budget be
communicated to residents following tonight’s meeting.
Councillor Pepper said that no money had been spent from the Climate Change
budget. An independent person would be brought in to advise on how best to
spend the budget over the next three years.
Councillor Hargreaves said the message would be communicated by council tax
bills. He said he would circulate details on the net income generated by the
investments outside of the meeting.
Councillor Barker said there had been a mistake in the papers; those paying
Band D would in fact pay £10 more a year, not £5. She could not support a
budget that raised taxes in two consecutive years.
Councillor Hargreaves said this had been corrected and Band D tax payers
would see an annual increase of £5 only.
Councillor Coote said he would defend the rise in council tax in order to maintain
the current level of services the Council provided.
In response to a question regarding an adjournment, the Chief Executive said
there were six further speakers and advised to adjourn following resolution of the
budget item under debate.
Councillor Gregory said the Scrutiny Committee had been impressed by the
report and praised officers for presenting a balanced budget. He said there were
two issues that Scrutiny were concerned with; the Climate Change project
required measures of success before money was spent and he wanted to see
the Climate Change Action Plan before September 2021. He said there were
also concerns with the projected expenditure on the planning department, and
asked that detailed proposals be presented to Scrutiny before expenditure took
place. He said that Chesterford Research Park had been a success but had
added much strain to the local road network; an issue that had yet to be
resolved.

Page 10

Councillor Caton said he supported the proposals to raise council tax to ensure
council services were maintained in future years.
Councillor Bagnall said he was disappointed with the political point scoring on
display. He highlighted the fact that other local councils were raising council tax
at this time.
Councillor Fairhurst said he supported this budget but it was unsettling that the
climate change budget had yet been utilised. He asked what was holding up this
critical project and feared it was already too late.
Councillor Asker said she supported the proposal to raise council tax to ensure
spending continued on services. It was a fair proposal she was prepared to
defend. She said the climate change budget would be utilised before September.
Councillor Hargreaves said green spending had taken place in the form of a
green energy tariff. Furthermore, he said the objective was not to simply spend
the budget but to spend it effectively and carefully.
The Chair moved to a vote. The recommendations set out in Appendices A to H
were taken first. The vote was carried 30 for, 4 against and 3 abstentions.
The Council Tax resolution as setout in Appendix I was necessitated by law to
be determined by a recorded vote. The resolution was carried 30 for, 5 against
and 2 abstentions as follows:
Councillor:
Armstrong
Asker
Bagnall
Barker
Caton
Coote
Criscione
Day
De Vries
Dean
Driscoll
Eke
Evans
Fairhurst
Foley
Freeman
Gregory
Hargreaves
Isham
Jones
Khan
Lavelle
LeCount

For, Against or Abstain
For
For
For
Against
For
For
Against
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
Abstain
For
For
For
For
For
For
For
For

Page 11

Lees
Lemon
Light
Lodge
Loughlin
Luck
Merifield
Oliver
Pavitt
Pepper
Reeve
Sell
Sutton
Tayler

For
Against
Against
For
Abstain
For
For
Against
For
For
For
For
For
For

Council is RESOLVED to:
A) Section 25 Report – Robustness of Estimates and
Adequacy of Reserves:
I.
Take account of the advice in the report when determining
the 2021/22 General Fund budget and Council Tax
II. Review the risk assessment relating to the robustness of
estimates as detailed in the report
III. Set the minimum safe contingency level for 2021/22 at
£1,458,615 million for the General Fund and £463,865 million for
the Housing Revenue Account
IV. Agree that no transfers to or from the Working Balance should
be built into the 2021/22 budget.
B) Commercial Strategy
V.
Approve the Commercial Strategy 2021 - 2026.
C) Medium Term Financial Strategy
VI.
Approve The Medium Term Financial Strategy
D) Treasury Management Strategy
VII. Approve the Treasury Management Strategy
E) Capital Strategy
VIII. Approve the Capital Strategy
IX.
Approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Policy.
F) Capital Programme
X.
Approve the 5 year Capital Programme
G) Housing Revenue Account (HRA)
XI.
Approve the Housing Revenue Account

Page 12

H) General Fund Revenue and Council Tax
XII.
Approve the General Fund Council Tax requirement of
£6,158,684.
XIII. Approve the use of reserves
XIV. Approve the schedule of fees and charges as set out in
Annex H6.
XV. that delegated authority is given to the Director of Public
Services to amend the S106 monitoring fee, Port Health
fees and trade waste fees.
I) Council Tax Resolution
XVI. Approve the Council Tax Resolution for 2021/22.
Councillor Driscoll proposed adjournment of the meeting until Thursday, 25
February at 7pm.
Councillor Freeman duly seconded.
The meeting was adjourned at 10.05pm.

C82

PAY POLICY STATEMENT
The meeting was reconvened at 7.00pm on 25 February. Business was resumed
at Item 11 – Pay Policy Statement. Councillor Criscione gave his apologies as he
had prior commitments.
The Chair reconvened the meeting and a register of those present was taken.
The Chair then read an apology to Dr Ghosh, a public speaker on 23 February,
for interrupting her statement. He asked Members to refrain from revealing
confidential information at a public meeting.
Councillor Hargreaves summarised the report to Council and proposed the
recommendation set put in the report.
Councillor Armstrong seconded the proposal.
The proposal was carried unanimously.
RESOLVED to
I.
Approve the Pay Policy Statement
II.
Give delegated authority to the Assistant Director – Corporate Services to
update the Pay Policy Statement and associated documents with pay
multiple and average salary figures as at 31 March 2021 and with revised
salary information once the 2021/22 national pay award is agreed.

C83

UTTLESFORD CLIMATE CHANGE STRATEGY
Councillor Pepper summarised the report relating to the Uttlesford Climate
Change Strategy and thanked Members and officers for their help in preparing

Page 13

the document. She said an Action Plan would follow, which would provide
measures of success and add further detail to the Strategy, and this had been
delayed due to the welcomed news that £1 million had been allocated to fight
climate change over the next three years. She proposed approval of the
Strategy.
Councillor Pavitt seconded the proposal and said he had worked closely with
Councillor Pepper and he admired her dedication to the task at hand. This was a
complicated and fast changing subject and this Strategy was a great beginning.
In response to a question from Councillor Barker relating to the cost of a
dedicated Climate Change officer, the Director – Finance and Corporate
Resources said the role was currently being evaluated and details could be
shared once the cost was known.
In response to a question from Councillor Barker relating to the reduction in the
Council’s carbon footprint since staff were working from home, Councillor Pepper
said she would respond in writing.
Members discussed the Strategy and there was broad support for the proposal.
Councillor Gregory said he looked forward to receiving the action plan at
Scrutiny; he said clear objectives and measurements of success were essential.
Councillor Khan said the carbon reduction figures were contained in the
document.
In response to a comment from Councillor Armstrong regarding potholes,
Councillor Barker raised a point of clarification and said tarmac and concrete
were not environmentally friendly materials but such materials were required to
endure heavy use and resist the weather.
Councillor Pepper made her concluding statement; she said this had been a
huge undertaking and said she was proud of the cross party working practices
that had led to the Strategy. She said expert advice would be sought in terms of
how best to spend money to combat climate change, and asked Members to
support the proposal.
The proposal was carried unanimously.
RESOLVED to approve the draft Climate Change Strategy set out in
Appendix 1.

C84

SCHEDULE OF MEETINGS 2021-22
In response to comments from Councillors Freeman and Driscoll, the Leader
said an additional ‘budget only’ Council meeting would be scheduled in future
years, to ensure adequate time was given to the budget.
The schedule was noted.

Page 14

C85

APPOINTMENT OF MONITORING OFFICER AND DELEGATION OF POWERS
Councillor Asker presented the report and proposed approval of the
recommendation.
Councillor Oliver duly seconded.
The proposal was carried unanimously.
RESOLVED that:
I. Council appoints Ms Jane Reynolds as Monitoring Officer for the council
and gives her delegated power to grant dispensations under s.33
Local Government Act 2011 to district, parish and town councillors
who have disclosable pecuniary interests to speak and/or vote on
issues relating to such interests and to grant dispensations under the
Code of Conduct to district, parish and town councillors with other
pecuniary interests to speak and/or vote on issues relating to such
interests;
II. the powers delegated to the Assistant Director Governance and Legal, by
the council’s Scheme of Delegation be delegated to Ms Reynolds.

C86

APPOINTMENTS TO THE STANDARDS COMMITTEE
Councillor Dean had been nominated to the Liberal Democrat vacancy on the
Standards Committee; Councillor Loughlin had been nominated to the substitute
vacancy.
Councillor Dean proposed approval of the nominations; Councillor Sell
seconded.
Councillor Driscoll requested that each appointment was taken separately.
Councillor Sell this was against protocol; the appointment was reserved to the
Liberal Democrats and it was for the Group Leader to put forward nominations.
The convention was for such appointments to go ahead unopposed.
Councillor Asker said she respected the convention but she objected to the
appointment on the grounds the members had recently resigned and now had
decided to return to the Committee.
There was dissent to Councillor Dean’s nomination.
The vote was carried 24 for, 12 abstentions.

Page 15

Councillor Loughlin’s appointment was carried unanimously. However, she
resigned as a substitute of the Committee immediately, due to the treatment of
Councillor Dean’s appointment.
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Dean to the Liberal Democrat vacancy
on the Standards Committee.

C87

MEMBER MOTION: NOLAN PRINCIPLES
Councillor Pavitt presented his motion on the Nolan Principles. He proposed as
follows:
Whereas it is noted that there has been some ambiguity over institutional and
personal commitment to the Nolan principles as a result of conflation with other
matters,
We, the undersigned, note that the Nolan Principles underpin all actions of this
Council and our actions, in the public interest, as individuals. This Council
reaffirms its commitment to the seven Nolan Principles of Public Life Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness, Honesty and
Leadership.
He said the motion was simple and clear, and urged members to support this
proposal rather than the amendment.
Councillor Tayler seconded the motion and said he was doing so to build respect
and trust between groups and to reaffirm Council’s commitment to the Nolan
principles. He said the previous motion, considered at Council on 8 December,
that had been rejected at Council, which some had purported was a rejection of
the Nolan Principles, had been rejected due to the crux of the motion itself,
which related to a specific matter.
Councillor Khan said he was surprised by the “Damascene Conversion” in the
Members support for the Nolan Principles.
Councillor Pavitt raised a point of personal clarification; he said he had not voted
against the Nolan Principles.
Councillor Khan asked Members to show integrity and vote for the amendment.
Councillor Isham said it was strange to reaffirm principles to which all councillors
were duty bound; all members were in support of the Nolan Principles.
Councillor Asker said this situation could have been avoided if the previous
motion’s clauses had been taken as a separate vote and this guidance should
have been provided to the Chair.
Councillor Sell had given notice of an amendment and proposed as follows:

Page 16

Whereas it is noted that there has been some ambiguity over institutional and
personal commitment to the Nolan principles as a result of conflation with other
matters.
We, the undersigned, note that the Nolan Principles underpin all actions of this
Council and our actions, in the public interest, as individuals.
This Council therefore reaffirms its commitment to the seven Nolan Principles of
Public Life – Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness,
Honesty and Leadership.
We therefore acknowledge and recognise our obligations in terms of these
principles to hold ourselves to full and open scrutiny, and to stand up to and
report all actions or omissions by our colleagues and elements of our council that
appear reasonably to contradict these principles.
Councillor Sell said he was looking to build a consensus with his amendment,
and it was by no means opportunistic.
Councillor Dean seconded the amendment.
Councillor Hargreaves asked members to vote down the amendment. He said it
was looking to amend the Code of Conduct to incorporate the Principles. This
had been discussed in 2017 by the Standards Committee and they had decided
against incorporating the principles, as they lacked definition and could lead to a
political mechanism which could be used against Members in a potentially
vexatious way. Furthermore, he said that Councillor Dean had abstained from
voting for this very reason at the meeting in 2017. He used the example of
‘leadership’ to demonstrate the subjective nature of the principles and to warn of
the dangers of incorporating them into the Code of Conduct.
Councillor Gregory agreed and said this would open the door to vexatious
complaints. He would not support the amendment. He added that the issue with
the previous motion was that it compounded the Nolan Principles with a
procedural motion which he could not have supported as a whole.
Councillor Barker said she tried to live her life well, and adhered to the Nolan
Principles regardless of her role as councillor. She said she had signed up the
amendment as she did not understand the introduction to the substantive
motion. She said there was no ambiguity in relation to the Nolan principles.
Councillor Freeman said he could not support the amendment as it would open
the door to vexatious complaints, which would be anti-democratic.
Councillor Light said councillors had failed to understand that action speaks
louder than words and urged members to vote for the amendment and to act in
accordance with the Nolan Principles.
Councillor Caton said he was appalled by the behaviour of Council and said he
would vote against the proposals.

Page 17

Councillor Fairhurst said the motion itself was an amendment and that all would
affirm their commitment to the Nolan Principles. The difference between
Members were down to different interpretations of the principles. He said the
motion on 8 December had called for action in relation to matters that directly
related to the principles; he said the motion was not conflated, it was about
following up commitments to the principles with actual deeds.
The Chair adjourned the meeting for a comfort break at 9.10pm.
The meeting was reconvened at 9.15pm.
Councillor Dean said the amendment set out Members’ individual obligations; if
Members voted this down, they would be dismissing their obligations. He said he
had re-joined the Standards Committee as commitments had been made to
regularise the standards process. He said he hoped Members supported the
amendment as it set out what the Council would do.
Councillor Reeve proposed that the question now be put.
Councillor Freeman seconded.
There was no dissent.
Councillor Pavitt summarised following comments made on the amendment. He
said it was clear that no one was arguing against the Nolan Principles but he
was worried about the amendment as it proposed to introduce a change in how
the Council approached Standards matters. He said you could not decide to
change the rules on the spur of the moment; if there was a real desire for
change, proposals should be considered by the Standards Committee before
being brought back to Council. He asked members to vote against the
amendment.
Councillor Light requested a recorded vote on the amendment.
The Chair moved to a vote on the amendment.

Councillor:
Armstrong
Asker
Bagnall
Barker
Caton
Coote
Day
De Vries
Dean
Driscoll
Eke
Evans
Fairhurst

For, Against or Abstain
Against
Against
Against
For
For
Against
Against
Against
For
Against
Against
Against
For

Page 18

Foley
Freeman
Gregory
Hargreaves
Isham
Jones
Khan
Lavelle
LeCount
Lees
Lemon
Light
Lodge
Loughlin
Luck
Merifield
Oliver
Pavitt
Pepper
Reeve
Sell
Sutton
Tayler

Abstain
Against
Against
Against
For
Against
For
Against
Against
Against
For
For
Against
For
Against
Against
For
Against
Against
Against
For
Against
Against

The amendment fell, 11 for, 24 against and 1 abstention.
In response to a question from Councillor Light, the Chief Executive clarified the
rule relating to the 12.9.2 that gave the mover of the motion the right of reply at
the end of the debate.
Councillor Barker raised a point of order relating to Councillor Coote’s
comments. She asked that the protocol be adhered to.
The debate returned to the substantive motion.
The Chair asked the Democratic Services Manager to read out Councillor
Criscione’s statement, as he had been unable to attend the reconvened meeting.
The Democratic Services Manager said he had received an email from
Councillor Criscione stating his points had been adequately made at the meeting
and that the statement did not need to be read.
Councillor Lees proposed that the substantive motion now be put to vote.
Councillor Driscoll seconded.
The Chair moved to a vote that the question now be put. The proposal was
carried 18 for, 16 against and 2 abstentions.
Councillor Fairhurst asked Members to vote in support of the substantive motion,
regardless of whether they had previously supported the amendment.

Page 19

Councillor Pavitt said he could not let Councillor Khan’s comments stand
regarding a Damascene Conversion; he had always supported and abided by
the Nolan Principles and requested that his comments were retracted. He said
there had not previously been a straight vote on the Nolan Principles, and this
was an opportunity to do so and remove any ambiguity. He asked Members to
support the motion.
The Chair moved to a vote. The substantive motion was approved, with 34 for,
none against and 2 abstentions.
Council is RESOLVED that:
Whereas it is noted that there has been some ambiguity over institutional
and personal commitment to the Nolan principles as a result of conflation
with other matters,
We, the undersigned, note that the Nolan Principles underpin all actions
of this Council and our actions, in the public interest, as individuals. This
Council reaffirms its commitment to the seven Nolan Principles of Public
Life - Selflessness, Integrity, Objectivity, Accountability, Openness,
Honesty and Leadership.

C88

MEMBER MOTION: ETHICAL INVESTMENT PROTOCOL.
Councillor Fairhurst presented his motion relating to an ethical investment
protocol. He said he had questioned the governance process surrounding
investments for three years, and had asked for a number of measures to be put
in place, including the appropriate training for Members who sit on the
Investment Board. He said it was essential that an ethical protocol was put in
place, and that Council listened to residents, regardless of whether dissenting
voices were in the majority. He said it was right that a protocol was put in place
now, even if there were no plans to add to the investment portfolio, as it would
give a clear message that the Council was committed to integrity and good
governance. He proposed the motion as follows:

Recent controversy surrounding a particular investment has once again raised
the issue of ethical investments considered by the Council.
It is unfortunate that these parameters were not agreed when the Investment
Board was established, but the Council recognises that it has a public mandate
and is using public money which warrants a higher degree of ethical selectivity
than a private investment portfolio.
This Council therefore resolves to establish and agree an Investment Protocol
and process which reflect the highest ethical standards and values and will
exclude all investments that compromise or do not meet or exceed these values.
This Council will demonstrate its commitment to ethical integrity by requiring its
investment strategy not to include the purchase of any commercial assets which

Page 20

are directly or indirectly associated with issues of human rights, environmental or
social harms.
Councillor Khan seconded the proposal and reserved his right to speak.
Councillor Luck said he had been impressed by Councillor Reeve and his
account on Investment Opportunity 12.
Councillor Lodge raised a point of order and said the amendment should be
taken at this point.
In response, the Chief Executive explained that the amendment had yet to be
proposed and a number of Members had raised their hands indicating that they
wanted to speak on the substantive motion first. The correct procedure was
being followed.
Councillor Light said she was in mourning as children were dying in Yemen
every 10 minutes. She said investments had to be ethical and asked whether
councillors could make such investments in good conscience. She said the first
draft of the motion had been deemed too prescriptive by officers, and now the
amendment was reducing the scope of the motion even further. She supported
the motion.
Councillor Freeman said he supported an ethical policy but he said the reason
the Council were making commercial investments was in order to protect
finances and fund services in light of the reduction in central Government
funding.
Councillor Reeve proposed an amendment to the motion as follows:
To strike out the substantive motion and replace with the following wording
This Council commends the commitment to ethical integrity as set out in
paragraphs 36 and 37 of the Commercial Strategy 2021 – 2025, and the
requirement therein to formulate an Investment Protocol to include ethical and
environmental considerations.
He said the Administration had already proposed an ethical investment protocol
within its Commercial Strategy and that had been approved by Council. He said
all councillors had a say on investments and deliberated on all elements of an
investment, including ethical considerations. He declared a non-pecuniary
interest as his son worked for Oxfam.
Councillor Hargreaves seconded the amendment.
Councillor Khan said the amendment was weak. It did not set out what assets
the Council would invest in, and what type of assets they would not. He said it
did not acknowledge the fact that there was no ethical policy in place. He asked
Members to consider what type of message this sent out to the wider public.

Page 21

Councillor LeCount said he was offended by the comment that the Investment
Board members were untrained. He questioned the ethics of purchasing goods
from Amazon and China.
Councillor Fairhurst raised a point of clarification; he said it was the officers
report that stated that Members of the Board were untrained. Furthermore, he
had requested training for all Board members before it was established.
Councillor Lodge said he supported an ethical investment policy, and the
amendment spelt out the Administration’s commitment to one. He said the
Chesterford Research Park investment had been determined before any
governance had been in place, in contrast to this Administration, which had
established an Investment Board, including independent members with the
necessary expertise. He said the previous Administration had left a hole in the
Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS).
Councillor Barker raised a point of clarification and said the previous
Administration had not left a hole in the finances. She said she was now leaving
the meeting but supported an ethical investment policy.
Councillor Barker left the meeting at 10.26pm.
In response, Councillor Lodge said in the fourth year of the MFTS, as handed by
the previous Administration, had a £3.5 million “gap” that would have led to a cut
in services if it were not for the success of the Councils investment portfolio. This
money was being spent on a range of services and several schemes across the
district.
Councillor Lavelle said a number of points had been misunderstood. The
Administration as not investing in companies; they were purchasing land with
leasers. Secondly, decisions that had come to the Investment Board had been
considered in an ethical light. He said this was not easy as many companies
were involved in multiple activities, but such considerations were given time at
meetings of the Board. He believed all investment decisions made by this
Council were justifiable.
Councillor Driscoll said Councillor Khan had agreed at the Investment Board
meeting on 22 December to assist with the drafting of an ethical protocol.
Councillor Isham said there was broad agreement that the Council required an
ethical investment policy. He did not understand why an amendment had been
tabled and wanted an end to the political point scoring.
Councillor Sell said there was often unanimity at the Investment Board, but not at
its previous meeting. Furthermore, it was not Councillor Khan’s role to draft
policies on behalf of the Administration. He cited an article in The Independent
and said the Council’s reputation was being damaged.
Councillor Lees took issue with an earlier comment regarding children dying in
Yemen as it was offensive to bring such an issue into a political debate. She said

Page 22

all Members wanted an ethical investment policy and she asked Members to
agree on a way forward.
Councillor Gregory said the substantive motion did not reflect the complexities of
the world we live in and was based on a number of assumptions. He used the
Oxfam scandal, an organisation which purportedly was held to the highest
ethical standards, as an example to demonstrate these complexities.
Furthermore, technological advancements often went in hand in hand with the
defence industry. He said disparaging the defence industry per se, which had
largely kept the peace in the West, was to misunderstand the history of the
second half of the 20th century. He said the amendment was robust and urged
Members to support it.
Councillor Dean said although the Council was investing in land, it was wrong to
say that it was not investing in the companies leasing the land, as the Council
was freeing up capital which the company would use to invest in its activities.
Councillor Khan said it was not his role to produce an ethical policy; it was for the
Administration and salaried officers to take the issue forward. He asked
councillors to support the substantive motion.
Councillor Hargreaves said the reason for the amendment was that it conformed
with the Council’s approval of the Commercial Strategy. The motion itself was
unnecessary as there was already a commitment to an ethical investment
protocol.
Councillor Fairhurst said he agreed with Councillors Isham and Lees comments
earlier in the meeting; all Members wanted an ethical policy, and it was
necessary to establish one. He said Councillor Gregory’s statement that the
substantive motion was “based on assumptions” and said he had referred to
several themes that were not mentioned in the motion.
Councillor Gregory said his point was that the world was complex and nuanced.
He asked Councillor Fairhurst to withdraw his comment.
Councillor Fairhurst said he refused on the basis that he felt the comments were
irrelevant to the motion before Members.
The Chair moved to a vote on the amendment. The amendment was carried 25
for, 9 against and 1 abstention.
Councillor Dean read a statement outlining the opposition of Liberal Democrat
and Green members to Investment Opportunity 12. He said ethical
considerations had not been raised in the Investment Board meeting until
Councillor Sell had raised the subject, and rejected previous claims that due
diligence and good governance had been applied. He said Liberal Democrat and
Green members would disassociate themselves from the investment and called
on other councillors to do the same, as the failure to produce an ethical
investment protocol, combined with a lack of full disclosure at the Investment
Board meeting, was a major governance failing.

Page 23

Councillor Reeve disputed Councillor Dean’s statement. He said the nature of
the company was discussed at the Investment Board and that there were no
objections at this meeting, although there were two abstentions. Furthermore, at
the Full Council meeting in January the nature of the company was further
discussed, along with wider ethical considerations.
Councillor Sell raised a point of clarification and said details of the company
were not disclosed in full at the Investment Board meeting. He agreed that he
had abstained, but he and Councillor Khan had advised strongly against the
opportunity due to their strong ethical concerns.
Councillor Driscoll asked for an investigation into how the confidential
information had entered the public domain.
The Chair moved to a vote on the substantive motion. The motion was approved
32 for, none against and 3 abstentions.
RESOLVED:
This Council commends the commitment to ethical integrity as set out in
paragraphs 36 and 37 of the Commercial Strategy 2021 – 2025, and the
requirement therein to formulate an Investment Protocol to include ethical and
environmental considerations.

The meeting was closed at 11.16pm.

Page 24

PUBLIC STATEMENTS
L Thomas
Ms Thomas spoke on the Ethical Investment Protocol and said it would be
sensible to implement one and said the Council could look at other local
authorities, such as Norwich City Council, for guidance. She highlighted the lack
of expertise of councillors in the matter of commercial investments, and that this
should be treated as a matter of urgency in light of the reduction in central
Government funding. She urged councillors to introduce an ethical investment
policy.
T Roberts
Ms Roberts also spoke on the Ethical investment protocol. She said the motion
on the agenda had stripped away the specifics that should be enshrined in an
ethical investment policy, and questioned the length of time that it would take if
the amendment was successful. She said if an ethical policy had been in place,
the Council could have avoided the embarrassment caused by the most recent
investment. Furthermore, millions of pounds had been spent in the interim and
an ethical policy needed to be put in place immediately.
Dr Ghosh
Dr Ghosh said she was a local resident with twenty years’ experience in
campaigning on human rights issues. She expressed disgust at the recent news
of Investment Opportunity 12 due to her ethical concerns relating to the company
in question.
The Chair took a point of order from Councillor Coote, who said details relating
to the investment were still confidential, and he asked the speaker to refrain from
revealing further confidential information.
Dr Ghosh highlighted Oxfam’s and the Campaign Against the Arms Trade
opposition to the investment. She asked the Council to not pursue the
investment and to establish an ethical investment protocol that would prevent
investment in the defence industry.
G Darcy
Mr Darcy said his concerns related to the process of the investment and asked
whether it had been properly scrutinised, whether elected Members had sight of
the investment, whether the financial benefits had been set out and whether
there had been local consultation with residents. He said this could lead to
additional costs if the investment was located in the district. He had concerns
regarding the framework in which the decision was made and urged adoption of
an ethical investment policy.
B Ross (read on his behalf by Democratic Services)

Page 25

Mr Ross said Stop Stansted Expansion were putting all efforts in defending the
Planning Committee’s decision to refuse the Stansted Airport application. He
said the Committee refused the application despite pressure from officers, and
had been mindful of the wider impact on global sustainability and future
generations when coming to their decision. He said it was wrong that officers
were now putting across an “apologetic defence” and questioned the point of
elections if the decision was overturned.

Page 26

Agenda Item 9
Committee:

Full Council

Date:

Title:

Political Balance 2021-22

Tuesday 18 May
2021

Report
Author

Ben Ferguson, Democratic Services Manager
bferguson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. This report considers the political composition of the Council and recommends
that seats on the main committees be allocated to the five political groups as
detailed in the report.
2. Following the by-elections held on 6 May 2021, the Council has 39 members.
3. The Council’s political composition is 24 Residents for Uttlesford, 5 Liberal
Democrats, 5 Conservatives, 2 Greens, 2 Uttlesford Independents and 1
Independent.
Recommendations
4. That the Council reviews its political composition and achieves political
balance by allocating seats on its committees as detailed in the report.
Financial Implications
5. None.
Background Papers
6. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
None.
Impact
7.
Communication/Consultation

Group Leaders have been informed of the
political balance calculation.

Community Safety

None.

Equalities

None.

Health and Safety

None.

Human Rights/Legal

The political balance calculation is in

Page 27

Implications

accordance with Local Government
Housing Act 1989.

Sustainability

None.

Ward-specific impacts

None.

Workforce/Workplace

None.

Situation
8. The Local Government Housing Act 1989 requires local authorities to review
the representation of the different political groups at the Annual Meeting or as
soon as practicable thereafter. It further requires them to allocate the seats on
their committees to political groups represented in accordance, so far as
reasonably practicable, with the following four principles of proportionality:a) that not all seats on the body concerned are allocated to the same
political group;
b) that the majority of the seats on the body is allocated to a particular
political group if the number of persons belonging to that group is a
majority of the authority’s membership;
c) subject to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, that the number of seats on
the ordinary committees of an authority which are allocated to each
political group bears the same proportion to the total of all the seats on
the ordinary committees of that authority as is borne by the number of
members of that group to the membership of the authority;
d) subject to paragraphs (a) to (c) above, that the number of the seats on
the body which are allocated to each political group bears the same
proportion to the number of all seats on that body as is borne by the
number of members of that group to the membership of the authority.
9. Ahead of any decision by Council, it has been proposed that the number of
seats on ordinary committees of the Council (excluding Standards Committee)
will be as follows:
Committee

Number of Seats

Governance, Audit and Performance

9

Licensing and Environmental Health

10

Planning

12

Scrutiny

9

Total

40

Page 28

10. Following the resignation of Councillor Isham from the Residents for Uttlesford
Group, the Council also has an Independent member who is not affiliated to a
party group for the purposes of the political balance calculation. Independent
members are entitled to be allocated committee seats on committees to make
the best overall fit. Guidance on this matter has been issued by the Local
Government Association (LGA), which has been followed in the calculations
below. If Independent members are excluded it can result in the political
balance being disproportionate on some or all committees. It is therefore
recommended that Councillor Isham is granted a seat on the Licensing &
Environmental Health Committee, which ensures the seat allocation to the
committees conforms to the principles in para 9 and provides for all members
to have at least one seat on at least one committee.
11. Based on the 40 seats, the number of seats available to each group is as
follows:
Group

Percentage

Calculated
Seats

Number of
Seats

Residents for
Uttlesford

61.54%

24.62

25

Liberal
Democrats

12.82%

5.13

5

Conservative

12.82%

5.13

5

Uttlesford
Independents

5.13%

2.05

2

Green Group

5.13%

2.05

2

Independent

2.56%

1.02

1

Total

100%

40

40

Licensing and Environmental Health Committee
12. The Licensing Committee cannot be taken into account for the purposes of the
calculation because it was not established under the Local Government Act
1972. However, it seems sensible to offer the ten places to be allocated on the
same basis of proportionality, and the Licensing Committee has therefore
been included in the calculation of the number of seats. It is a requirement that
the Licensing Committee has between 10-15 members.
Standards Committee
13. The Council’s Constitution recognises that that the rules of political balance
contained in the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 apply but

Page 29

acknowledges that a politically balanced Standards Committee would be
undesirable. It provides that subject to no member present voting against the
proposal each political group on the Council would have at least one member
on the Standards Committee. The aim is to achieve an even balance on the
Committee.
14. Article 9 of the Constitution provides for three nominations for each political
group, until the point when the Committee reaches a maximum of 9 members.
As there are 5 political groups it is proposed that membership of the Standards
Committee should be allocated as follows:

Political Party

Number of Seats

Residents for Uttlesford

3

Liberal Democrats

2

Conservatives

2

Uttlesford Independents

1

Green Group

1

Total

9

Proposal for Allocation of Seats
15. The allocation of the 49 seats is therefore proposed as follows:
Committee

No. Seats
Available

R4U LDs CONs UTT
INDs

Greens IND

Governance, Audit and
Performance

9

6

1

1

0

1

0

Licensing and
Environmental Health

10

6

1

1

0

1

1

Planning

12

7

2

2

1

0

0

Scrutiny

9

6

1

1

1

0

0

Standards

9

3

2

2

1

1

0

Total

49

28

7

7

3

3

1

Page 30

Risk Analysis
16. There are no risks associated with this report.

Page 31

Committee:

Full Council

Date:

Title:

Revised Political Balance 2021-22

Tuesday 18 May
2021

Report
Author

Ben Ferguson, Democratic Services Manager
bferguson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. This report considers the political composition of the Council and recommends
that seats on the main committees be allocated to the five political groups as
detailed in the report.
2. Following Councillor Isham’s announcement that he had joined the Green
Group on Friday, 14 May 2021, there is a need to revise the political balance
calculation previously published.
3. The Council’s political composition is 24 Residents for Uttlesford, 5 Liberal
Democrats, 5 Conservatives, 3 Greens and 2 Uttlesford Independents.
Recommendations
4. That the Council reviews its political composition and achieves political
balance by allocating seats on its committees as detailed in the report.
Financial Implications
5. None.
Background Papers
6. The following papers were referred to by the author in the preparation of this
report and are available for inspection from the author of the report.
None.
Impact
7.
Communication/Consultation

Group Leaders have been informed of the
political balance calculation.

Community Safety

None.

Equalities

None.

Health and Safety

None.

Page 32

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

The political balance calculation is in
accordance with Local Government
Housing Act 1989.

Sustainability

None.

Ward-specific impacts

None.

Workforce/Workplace

None.

Situation
8. The Local Government Housing Act 1989 requires local authorities to review
the representation of the different political groups at the Annual Meeting or as
soon as practicable thereafter. It further requires them to allocate the seats on
their committees to political groups represented in accordance, so far as
reasonably practicable, with the following four principles of proportionality:a) that not all seats on the body concerned are allocated to the same
political group;
b) that the majority of the seats on the body is allocated to a particular
political group if the number of persons belonging to that group is a
majority of the authority’s membership;
c) subject to paragraphs (a) and (b) above, that the number of seats on
the ordinary committees of an authority which are allocated to each
political group bears the same proportion to the total of all the seats on
the ordinary committees of that authority as is borne by the number of
members of that group to the membership of the authority;
d) subject to paragraphs (a) to (c) above, that the number of the seats on
the body which are allocated to each political group bears the same
proportion to the number of all seats on that body as is borne by the
number of members of that group to the membership of the authority.
9. Ahead of any decision by Council, the Leader has been proposed that the
number of seats on ordinary committees of the Council (excluding Standards
Committee) will be as follows:
Committee

Number of Seats

Governance, Audit and Performance

9

Licensing and Environmental Health

10

Planning

11

Scrutiny

10

Total

40

Page 33

10. The Leader has opted for a scheme which ensures each political group has a
seat on the Planning Committee.
11. Based on the 40 seats, the number of seats available to each group is as
follows:
Group

Percentage

Calculated
Seats

Number of
Seats

Residents for
Uttlesford

61.54%

24.61

25

Liberal
Democrats

12.82%

5.12

5

Conservative

12.82%

5.12

5

Uttlesford
Independents

5.13%

2.05

2

Green Group

7.69%

3.07

3

Total

100%

40

40

Licensing and Environmental Health Committee
12. The Licensing Committee cannot be taken into account for the purposes of the
calculation because it is not a Committee to which the Local Government Act
1972 applies. However, it is proposed that the ten places available to be
allocated to the Licensing Committee and agreed by Council be calculated on
the same basis of proportionality applied to those Committees falling under the
1972 Act. It is a requirement that the Licensing Committee has between 10-15
members.
Standards Committee
13. The Council’s Constitution recognises that that the rules of political balance
contained in the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 apply but
acknowledges that a politically balanced Standards Committee would be
undesirable. It provides that subject to no member present voting against the
proposal each political group on the Council would have at least one member
on the Standards Committee. The aim is to achieve an even balance on the
Committee.
14. Article 9 of the Constitution provides for three nominations for each political
group, until the point when the Committee reaches a maximum of 9 members.

Page 34

As there are 5 political groups it is proposed that membership of the Standards
Committee should be allocated as follows:

Political Party

Number of Seats

Residents for Uttlesford

3

Liberal Democrats

2

Conservatives

2

Uttlesford Independents

1

Green Group

1

Total

9

Proposal for Allocation of Seats
15. The allocation of the 49 seats is therefore proposed as follows:
Committee

No. Seats
Available

R4U LDs CONs UTT
INDs

Greens

Governance, Audit and
Performance

9

6

1

1

0

1

Licensing and Environmental
Health

10

6

2

2

0

0

Planning

11

7

1

1

1

1

Scrutiny

10

6

1

1

1

1

Standards

9

3

2

2

1

1

Total

49

28

7

7

3

4

Risk Analysis
16. There are no risks associated with this report.

Page 35

Agenda Item 11
PROPOSED APPOITNMENTS TO WORKING GROUPS OF THE COUNCIL
LOCAL JOINT PANEL

Cllr C Criscione

Cllr A Coote

Cllr J Loughlin
GOVERNANCE REVIEW WORKING GROUP

Cllr A Coote (Chair)
Cllr C Criscione
Cllr J Evans
Cllr R Freeman

Cllr M Gregory
Cllr V Isham
Cllr A Khan
Cllr P Lees
Cllr G Sell

Page 36

Agenda Item 12
PROPOSED APPOITNMENTS TO JOINT COMMITTEES
ESSEX POLICE, FIRE AND CRIME PANEL

Substantive Member: Cllr C Day
Substitute Member: Cllr G LeCount

Page 37

Agenda Item 13
Committee:

Council

Date:
18 May 2021

Title:

Establishment of an Appointments Committee

Portfolio
Holder:

Leader of the Council

Key decision:
No

Summary
1. The Chief Executive has advised in writing of her intention to resign from the
Council. In addition, there is a need to fill the post of Assistant Director for
Legal and Governance, which is also the statutory post of Monitoring Officer.
2. The Council is responsible for confirming the appointment of the Head of Paid
Service (and the designated post for the Head of Paid Service is the Chief
Executive) and the statutory role of Monitoring Officer.
3. It is proposed that a committee be appointed to advise the Council on the
process for appointing a new Chief Executive and Assistant Director of Legal
and Governance and then to recommend appointments to Full Council.
Recommendations
4. That an Appointments Committee be established, comprising 7 members: four
Residents for Uttlesford, one Liberal Democrat, one Conservative and one
from the Green Party/Independents’ Group.
Financial Implications
5. There are no direct financial implications arising from this report.
Background Papers
6. None
Situation
7. The Chief Executive has advised in writing of her intention to resign from the
Council, with her contract ending on 31 August 2021.
8. Full council is charged with confirming the appointment of the Head of Paid
Service and this post is designated to the Chief Executive.
9. The position of Assistant Director for Governance and Legal has been vacant
for some time and has been covered by a number of interim arrangements. A
consultation with staff was carried out regarding the future of this position and

Page 38

it has been determined by the Head of Paid Service that the position be
retained as an Assistant Director responsible for a range of services, as well
as being appointed the Monitoring Officer.
10. The purpose of the Appointments Committee will be to define the process for
appointing to these roles, to undertake those processes and to recommend to
Full Council an appointment for each post.
11. Considering the timetable for undertaking the complete process, in respect of
the Chief Executive, the task group will be asked to consider any interim
arrangements required and report to Full Council accordingly. The vacant role
of Assistant Director for Legal and Governance is being covered by the interim
Manager of Legal Services (and apppointed Monitoring Officer), together with
the Chief Executive and the Director for Finance and Corporate Services.
12. Ahead of the meeting, it is anticipated the details of the membership of the
Appointments Committee will be agreed and will provide a diverse
representation of members, ideally with some experience in recruitment.

Page 39

APPOINTMENTS COMMITTEE – proposed membership

Cllr P Lees, Cllr S Merifield, Cllr N Hargreaves, Cllr R Pavitt, Cllr C Criscione, Cllr M Caton and
Cllr J Lodge

Page 40

Agenda Item 14
Committee:

Full Council

Date:

Title:

Council Procedure Rules: time permitted for
questions to the executive and Committee
Chairs

Tuesday,

Lead
Member:

Councillor Edward Oliver, Chair of the
Governance, Audit & Performance Committee

Report
Author:

Ben Ferguson, Democratic Services Manager

18 May 2021

bferguson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. The Council Procedure Rules stipulate that at every ordinary meeting of Full
Council an item is dedicated to the questioning of executive Members and
committee Chairs (Rule 2.4: Section 2, Part 4).
2. The time period provided for in the Constitution states that this question time will
not exceed 15 minutes.
3. At a Member’s request, the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee
(GAP) were asked whether a review into the time currently permitted for questions
to the executive and committee Chairs at Full Council meetings was warranted.
4. At the GAP meeting held on 4 February 2021, Members established a Task &
Finish Group to review the time permitted for questions to the executive and
Committee Chairs at Full Council meetings, and to make a recommendation to
the Committee in regard to amending Rule 2.4. The Group was comprised of
Councillors Driscoll, Barker, Isham, Jones and Khan.
5. The Group met on Friday, 26 February 2021 to consider a number of approaches
to questions to the executive and Committee Chairs, with a particular focus on the
Essex County Council model.
6. The GAP Committee considered the Group’s recommendation on 16 March 2021.
In summary, the Group proposed extending the time permitted for questions to 30
minutes and to implement a system whereby written questions and answers are
to be submitted and published in advance of a meeting. A question of clarification
would be permitted at the meeting itself, but not a supplementary question.
Furthermore, it was recommended that questions would not be permitted at
Annual Council and budget setting meetings. The report and appendices that
informed the recommendation are attached as Appendix 2.
7. The proposal was recommended to Full Council for approval without any
additional changes and is attached as Appendix 1 to this report.
8. The rules governing questions to the executive and committee Chairs at Full
Council meetings form part of the Council’s Constitution. Changes to the

Page 41

Constitution are reserved for Full Council on recommendation of the GAP
committee.
9. In the event Council are minded to amend Rule 2.4, the arrangements will be
trialled at the Full Council meetings scheduled on 20 July and 5 October.
Recommendations from the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee
10. That Council:
I.

Amends Rule 2.4 of the Council Procedure Rules and adopt the protocol as
set out in Appendix 1 to this report, subject to a trial period of two Full
Council meetings.

Financial Implication
11. None.
Background Papers
Uttlesford District Council - Constitution: Section 2, Part 4
Impact
12.
Communication/Consultation

The Task & Finish Group met on 26
February to discuss the options available.

Community Safety

None

Equalities

None

Health and Safety

None

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Notice of questions will allow for advance
consideration of any legal implications.

Sustainability

None

Ward-specific impacts

None

Workforce/Workplace

Officers will be required to administer the
written questions and answers system. It is
anticipated that this will be facilitated within
existing resources.

Risk Analysis
13.

Page 42

Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

That the current Rule
provides elected
members insufficient
time to ask questions
of the executive and
Committee Chairs.

3

3

To trial the proposed
amendments to Rule
2.4

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 43

Appendix 1

Appendix 1 – Proposed amendment to Rule 2.4
2.4.
For a period not exceeding 30 minutes for the Leader, members of the
executive and Chairs of committees to receive questions from members, to
permit the Leader, members of the executive or Chairs to reply and for the
questioner to ask a question of clarification but without any debate on the
issues raised, in accordance with the protocol for Member Questions to the
Executive and Committee Chairs at Council meetings contained in Part 5 of the
Constitution;
Protocol for Member Questions to the Executive and Committee Chairs at
Council meetings
1. Written questions asked by Members of the Council
Members will be required to submit their questions in writing to Democratic Services
before 10:00am eight working days before the Council meeting. The questions
should be concise and indicate to whom the question is directed (the Leader, a
Cabinet Member or a Chair of a Committee). The question should relate to any
matter in respect of which the Council has powers or duties. The written question will
be published with the agenda for that meeting in the order in which the questions
were received, unless the Chief Executive, Monitoring Officer and/or Section 151
Officer considers the question should be restricted in accordance with the rules
applicable to access to information procedures.
No amendments are permitted to questions once they have been published, unless
they are put forward by the questioner for the purpose of clarification, and members
can withdraw their questions but may not substitute them.
Responses to these questions will be provided in writing and circulated to all
Members no later than 10.00am on the working day before the meeting.
1.1. Supplementary question
If after a reply is given to a written question the Member who asked the question
considers that the reply requires clarification, they may ask once for clarification but
otherwise no supplemental questions will be permitted except by leave of the Chair.
1.2 Restriction on number of questions
The number of written questions which may be asked by any one Member at any
one meeting will be limited to two.
1.3 Urgent oral questions

Page 44

Appendix 1

A Member may put an oral question to Cabinet Members and Committee Chairs
regarding any urgent matter that has arisen in the 8 working days preceding the
meeting, subject to attaining the consent of the Chair of Council. The question
should be provided in writing to Democratic Services, and copied to the relevant
member from who a response is requested, no later than 9.00am on the day of the
meeting.
Urgent questions permitted by the Chair will be taken before all other questions.
1.4 Form of answer to oral questions
An answer may take the form of:
(i) a direct oral answer; or
(ii) where the desired information is contained in a publication of the Council, a
reference to that publication; or
(iii) where the Chief Executive considers that the reply to the question can
conveniently be so given, by a written answer circulated to the Members of the
Council present at the meeting.
1.5 Time permitted
The time allotted at each meeting for the putting and answering of questions under
this paragraph shall not exceed 30 minutes, without the leave of the Chair of the
Council.
1.6 Exceptions
Questions will not be permitted at Annual Council or budget setting meetings.

Page 45

Appendix 2
Committee:

Governance, Audit and Performance
Committee

Date:

Title:

Council Procedure Rules: time permitted for
questions to the executive and Committee
Chairs

16 March 2021

Report
Author:

Ben Ferguson, Democratic Services Manager

Tuesday,

bferguson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. At the Governance, Audit and Performance Committee meeting held on 4
February 2021, Members established a Task & Finish Group to review the time
permitted for questions to the executive and Committee Chairs (Rule 2.4: Section
2, Part 4), and to make a recommendation to the Committee in regards to
amending Rule 2.4.
2. The Group was composed of Councillors Driscoll, Barker, Isham, Jones and
Khan.
3. The Group met on Friday, 26 February to consider a number of approaches to
questions to the executive and Committee Chairs, with a particular focus on the
Essex County Council model. The Group’s recommendation is set out in
Appendix 1 of this report.
Recommendations
4. That the Committee recommends to Council that it amend Rule 2.4 of the Council
Procedure Rules as set out in Appendix 1 to this report on a trial basis.
Financial Implication
5. None.
Background Papers
Uttlesford District Council - Constitution: Section 2, Part 4
Impact
6.
Communication/Consultation

The Task & Finish Group met on 26
February to discuss the options available.

Community Safety

None

Equalities

None

Page 46

Health and Safety

None

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

Notice of questions will allow for advance
consideration of any legal implications.

Sustainability

None

Ward-specific impacts

None

Workforce/Workplace

None

Situation
7. Under the Council Procedure Rules (Rule 2.4: Section 2, Part 4), the time
permitted for questions to the executive and Committee Chairs is limited to 15
minutes:


For a period not exceeding 15 minutes for the Leader, members of the
executive and Chairmen of committees to receive questions from members, to
permit the Leader, members of the executive or Chairmen to reply and for the
questioner to ask a supplementary question but without any debate on the
issues raised;

8. Comments have been made at Full Council regarding the increased number of
Cabinet members under the current Administration and the subsequent need to
extend the question time permitted. At the Committee meeting on 4 February, a
Task and Finish Group was established to review the issue.
9. The Task & Finish Group met on 26 February. The report and associated
appendices considered by the Group have been attached at Appendix 2.
10. Members discussed the rules in place at South Lakeland District Council,
Tendring District Council, Norfolk County Council and Essex County Council.
Councillor Barker spoke of her experience at Essex County Council (ECC), with
specific focus on how question time worked on a practical level.
11. Members highlighted the following issues during their discussion:
 The majority view was that question time should be extended to 30 minutes, to
allow effective questioning of the executive. It was vital that Cabinet Members
were held accountable, and a time extension was justifiable due to the higher
number of Cabinet Members under the current Administration. It was noted
that if the 30 minutes were not required in full, the meeting would simply move
onto the next item.
 In addition to an increase in time, it was agreed that questions should be
submitted in writing well in advance of meetings, in order that written
responses be provided in advance of the meeting.
 There was particular interest in the ECC model, as described by Councillor
Barker. At ECC meetings, only questions of clarification could be asked;
Members did not read out the written questions or answers, and there would
be no opportunity to ask supplementary questions.

Page 47

 The culture, working behaviour and tone of Full Council meetings required
addressing. There was agreement that question time could be perceived as
antagonistic. Members felt that by supplying questions and answers in
advance of these meetings, a more professional and dignified tone could be
conveyed.
 Rule 2.4 only applied to the standing item ‘Questions to the executive and
Committee Chairs’; Members would still be free to ask questions during their
statements on any report when the appropriate agenda item was under
consideration.
 Oral questions could be asked but only on matters that had arisen in the past
eight working days, and providing the Chair had given their consent that the
matter was urgent. Notice of oral questions was required to be given by
9.00am on the day of the meeting.
 Any changes to Rule 2.4 should be implemented on a trial basis before
amending the Constitution. It is recommended that Council adopt the changes
on a trial basis for two meetings in order that any potential problems can be
identified and addressed before final approval. .
 Exceptions should be put in place for the budget setting and Annual Council
meetings. These meetings should be dedicated to the business on the agenda
and questions would not be permitted.
12. Appendix 1 sets out the proposed arrangements for ‘Questions to the executive
and Committee Chairs’. Primarily, the proposal is based on the ECC model,
although it has been amended in order to incorporate the Group’s comments.
13. Members are asked to recommend to Council that Rule 2.4 be amended as setout in Appendix 1 of this report, subject to a trial period of two Full Council
meetings.
Risk Analysis
14.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

That the current Rule
provides elected
members insufficient
time to ask questions
of the executive and
Committee Chairs.

3

3

To trial the proposed
amendments to Rule
2.4

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 48

Appendix 2.1 – Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26
February 2021
Committee:

Task & Finish Group: time permitted for
questions to the executive and committee
chairs

Title:

Council Procedure Rules: time permitted for
questions to the executive and committee
chairs

Report
Author:

Ben Ferguson, Democratic Services Manager

Date:
26 February 2021

bferguson@uttlesford.gov.uk

Summary
1. The Council Procedure Rules stipulate that at every ordinary meeting of Full
Council an item is dedicated to the questioning of executive Members and
committee chairs.
2. The time period provided for in the Constitution states that this question time will
not exceed 15 minutes.
3. At the GAP Committee meeting held on 4 February 2021, Members established a
Task & Finish Group to review Rule 2.4 (Section 2, Part 4), and to make a
recommendation to GAP in regard to amending Rule 2.4. The Group is composed
of Councillors Driscoll, Barker, Isham, Jones and Khan. Councillor Barker was
nominated to the Group in an advisory capacity.
Recommendations
4. To comment on the examples relating to the time permitted for questions to the
executive and committee chairs as outlined in this report, and to make a
recommendation to the GAP Committee regarding Rule 2.4.
Financial Implication
5. None.
Background Papers
Uttlesford District Council - Constitution: Section 2, Part 4
Impact
6.
Communication/Consultation

None

Community Safety

None

Equalities

None

Page 49

Health and Safety

None

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

None

Sustainability

None

Ward-specific impacts

None

Workforce/Workplace

None

Situation
7. Under the Council Procedure Rules (Section 2, Part 4 – Rule 2.4), the time
permitted for questions to the executive and committee Chairs is limited to 15
minutes:


For a period not exceeding 15 minutes for the Leader, members of the
executive and Chairmen of committees to receive questions from members, to
permit the Leader, members of the executive or Chairmen to reply and for the
questioner to ask a supplementary question but without any debate on the
issues raised;

8. Comments have been made at Full Council regarding the increased number of
Cabinet members under the current Administration and the subsequent need to
extend the question time permitted.
9. As the number of Cabinet members has increased from five, in 2017, to the
current ten, a straightforward proposal would be to increase the permitted time for
questions from 15 to 30 minutes.
10. A number of other authorities allow up to 30 minutes’ question time to members of
the executive at their respective Full Council meetings. Examples include South
Lakeland, Tendring DC and Norfolk County Council.
11. However, it is worth noting that while the above examples all allow up to 30
minutes to question the executive, they each have unique procedures in terms of
giving notice of such questions. At Norfolk CC, notice is not required to ask
questions of the executive, but the process is largely built around the Cabinet
Members producing a written report at Council (although members are free to ask
any question relating to a Cabinet Member’s portfolio). There is also an additional
15 minutes set aside for questions to the Leader that do not relate to matters
contained in the Cabinet reports published with the agenda. These questions do
require notice.
12. At Tendring DC, 8 days notice is required to submit a question in writing, although
there is provision for the submission of urgent questions, and questions are
published with the agenda in the order in which they were submitted.
Furthermore, it is noteworthy that a written response to these questions must be
produced in writing and sent to the Democratic Services Manager no later than
midday on the day of the meeting.

Page 50

13. South Lakeland DC provides another variation of this model. Questions submitted
in writing require 24 hours notice, and all written questions are dealt with first
during the 30 minutes permitted for question time. If there is time remaining
following responses to the written questions, oral questions to Members of the
executive are allowed.
14. Members are asked to consider the procedural examples at Appendix A and to
consider whether an extension in time should be accompanied by further
amendments, such as changing the way in which questions are submitted,
stipulating how responses to such questions are given and whether any meetings
should be exempt from question time (e.g. Annual Council, Budget setting
meeting).
15. Members may feel that an alternative, more time effective solution is required. For
example, all questions could be submitted in advance of the meeting and
published with the agenda papers, thereby negating the need to read the question
out and saving time in the process.
16. At the GAP meeting on 4 February 2021, Members expressed interest in the
Essex County Council model, as highlighted by Councillor Barker. The relevant
section of the ECC Constitution has been attached at Appendix B.
17. The report author found the following of note:


Written questions are required to be submitted 7 days in advance of the
meeting itself. However, there is a degree of flexibility providing the Chairman
has given consent that the question is urgent and notice is given by 9.00am on
the day of the meeting. Furthermore, responses to the written questions are
provided in writing and circulated with all members on the day before the
meeting.



Restrictions apply in terms of the number of questions each member can
submit and in relation to supplementary/follow-up questions.



There is also provision to ask oral questions at the meeting. There is a 20
minute time limit for such questions.

18. At Appendix C, Members can see examples of the written questions and
responses as published by ECC.
19. Councillor Barker, an ECC Cabinet member, has extensive experience with this
model and is asked to provide comment on how this procedure works in practice.
Conclusion
20. Members are asked to consider the aforementioned procedures relating to the
time permitted for questions to the executive and committee chairs, and to
determine which elements, if any, should be implemented at Uttlesford District
Council. The examples outlined above are by no means exhaustive, nor are they
mutually incompatible. It has become clear to the report author that an extension
of the time permitted and the implementation of new procedures in terms of
submitting and responding to questions are worthy of consideration.
21. The primary issues, in the mind of the report author, appear to be:


Should the time permitted for questions be extended; if so, by how much?

Page 51



Should additional procedures be put in place in regard to the submission of
questions; if so, how prescriptive should these be, and should a degree of
flexibility be built in (e.g. discretion of the Chair to extend the available
speaking time)?



Should the way in which Cabinet members/Committee chairs respond to such
questions be stipulated in the Constitution?



Should the recommendations be trialled on a temporary basis?

Risk Analysis
22.
Risk

Likelihood

Impact

Mitigating actions

That the current Rule
provides elected
members insufficient
time to ask questions
of the executive and
committee chairs.

3

3

To review the current
Rule and amend as
required.

1 = Little or no risk or impact
2 = Some risk or impact – action may be necessary.
3 = Significant risk or impact – action required
4 = Near certainty of risk occurring, catastrophic effect or failure of project.

Page 52

Appendix 2.1 - Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26 February 2021
Appendix A – Constitutional examples of Questions to the Executive and Committees Chairs
Norfolk CC
8. QUESTIONS BY MEMBERS
8.1 QUESTIONS WITHOUT NOTICE
A Member of the Council may at a full Council meeting ask the Leader or the chair of a committee
any question without notice concerning an item within the report of the Cabinet or committee,
when that item is under consideration by the Council. A maximum overall period of 30 minutes shall
be allowed for questions to Cabinet Members, with a maximum of 5 minutes for questions to an
individual Cabinet Member, both periods to be extendable at the discretion of the Chair. Questions
to Cabinet Members can relate to anything within the remit of the Cabinet Member’s portfolio and
are not limited to items in the Cabinet reports.
8.2 QUESTIONS TO THE LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
At each Council meeting, there shall be a 15-minute Leader’s Question Time session during which
Members may ask questions that do not relate to items covered in the reports from Cabinet.
Questions shall not require prior notice. The Leader may ask Cabinet Members to answer questions
where appropriate.
8.3 QUESTIONS ON NOTICE
A Member of the Council may ask:
• the Chair;
• the Leader or relevant Cabinet Member;
• the chair of any committee
a question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects
Norfolk.
8.4 NOTICE OF QUESTIONS
A Member may only ask a question under Rule 8.3 if they have given at least 4 working days’ notice
of the question in writing to the Head of Democratic Services. However, if a question relates to
urgent matters and a Member has obtained the consent of the Chair of the Council, then the
question may be asked provided that the content of the question is given to the Head of Democratic
Services by 9.30 a.m. on the day of the meeting.
8.5 RESPONSE
Where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer will be sent to the questioner
within 7 days of the meeting and a copy appended to the minutes.
8.6 If the Member who has given written notice of the question is not present when the question is
to be put, that question may, with the consent of the Chair, be asked by any other Member present.

Page 53

Appendix 2.1 - Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26 February 2021

Tendring DC
Scope of Questions on Notice at Full Council and Time Allocated in the Meeting
Subject to Rules 11.3, 11.4 and 11.5 a Member of the Council may ask:the Chairman;
a Member of the Cabinet; and
the Chairman of any Committee;
a question on any matter, which is within their area of responsibilities as set out in Part 3 of the
Constitution, in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which affects the
Tendring District.
Questions from Members will be set out in the agenda in the order in which they were
received.
The time allocated for receiving and disposing of questions shall be a maximum 30 minutes.
Any question not disposed of at the end of this time shall be the subject of a written response,
copied to all Members the following working day unless withdrawn by the questioner.
Questions shall not be submitted to the Annual Meeting of the Council or to an Extraordinary
Meeting of the Council or to the Budget and Council Tax setting meeting of the Council.
11.3 Notice of Questions
A Member may only ask a question under Rule 11.2 if either:
(a) notice has been given by delivering it in writing (or by personal e-mail) to the
Committee Services Manager no later than midday 8 (eight) working days before the
day of the meeting; or
the question relates to urgent matters, he has the consent of the person to whom the
question is to be put and the content of the question is given to the Committee
Services Manager by noon on the day of the meeting.
11.4 Number of Questions
At any one meeting no Councillor may submit more than two questions.

Page 54

Appendix 2.1 - Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26 February 2021
11.5 Reasons for rejection of Questions
(a) the question is not about a matter for which the local authority has responsibility or
which affects the District;
(b) The Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgement it could be considered
to be defamatory or offensive or requires the disclosure of confidential or exempt
information (as defined in the Access to Information Procedure Rules);
(c) the Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgment it is substantially the
same as a question already received to be put to the ordinary meeting of the Council in
question;
(d) The Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgement it is substantially the
same as a question which has been put at a meeting of the Council in the past six
months;
(e) The Monitoring Officer will reject a question if in their judgement it is likely to lead to a
breach of the Members’ Code of Conductor; or
(f) the question is about a matter that is subject to call in or ongoing legal proceedings.
11.6 Response
An answer may take the form of:
(a) a direct oral answer;
(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other published work,
a reference to that publication; or
(c) where a reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer given later to all
Members.
The Member giving the response must provide an electronic or written copy of that response
to the Committee Services Manager by Noon on the day of the meeting in order to enable the
response to be circulated to the Questioner, the Chairman of the Council, the Leader of the
Council and relevant Officers.

Page 55

Appendix 2.1 - Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26 February 2021
South Lakeland DC
10.2 Cabinet Question Time
A period of 30 minutes will be allocated at each ordinary meeting of the Council, excluding the
Annual Meeting and Extraordinary Meetings, during which Members may ask questions of the
Executive on any topic that is within the jurisdiction or reasonable influence of the Council and is
relevant to the Leader or the Portfolio Holder’s area of responsibility in accordance with the
procedure set out in Rule 10.3.
As set out in paragraph 2(h) above, at least three times a year Council will be asked to consider a
composite report of the Cabinet. This will form part of the Cabinet Question Time agenda item with
a combined time period of up to a maximum of one hour being allocated.
10.3 Procedure for putting Questions during Cabinet Question Time (Rule 10.2)
The following procedure will be followed for putting questions during Cabinet Question Time:• Questions which are submitted in writing will be taken first.
• Written questions should be submitted in writing to the Legal, Governance and Democracy Lead
Specialist (Monitoring Officer) with at least 24 hours prior to the date of the relevant Council
meeting.
• The Leader and/or the Leader or Portfolio Holder will be notified as soon as possible of the receipt
of a written question.
• Written questions will be taken in the alphabetical order of the name of the Member putting the
questions. This will be alternated from meeting to meeting.
• Where a Member submits more than one question for a meeting, he/she will be able to ask his/her
first question in accordance with the alphabetical order of receipt. His/her subsequent questions(s)
will be taken after all other Members have asked their first or sole questions. If more than one
Member falls into this category then the subsequent questions will be asked alternatively until all
questions have been asked or the 30 minute period has expired.
• In the event that it is not possible to ask a written question due to lack of time, the Leader or
relevant Portfolio Holder will provide a written answer to the question following the meeting. This
will also be circulated to all Members.
• Once all written questions have been dealt with, and subject to time remaining within the 30
minute period, Members will be able to put questions from the floor to appropriate Portfolio
Holders present in the room, provided that they comply with the criteria in paragraph 10.2 above. If
more than one such question is asked the procedure set out in Rule 10.2(a) shall apply.
• Once a response has been given to the question, the Member who asked the question may ask one
supplementary question without notice, to the Member to whom the first question was asked. The
supplemental question must arise directly out of the original question or the reply.

Page 56

Appendix 2.1 - Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26 February 2021
10.4 Response
An answer to either a written question, supplementary question or oral question put during Cabinet
Question Time may take the form of:
(a) a direct oral answer;
(b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other published work, a
reference to that publication; or
(c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer circulated later to the
questioner and all other members.

Page 57

Appendix 2.2 - Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26 February 2021
Appendix B – Essex County Council
16.12 Questions at Council meetings
16.12.1 Written questions asked by Members of the Council
A Member may, if notice has been given in writing to the Chief Executive before 9:00am seven
calendar days before the Council meeting, ask the Leader, Cabinet Member or Chairman of a
Committee any question on any matter in respect of which the Council has powers or duties.
Where he considers the matter urgent, the Chairman may allow any member to put to the Leader,
Cabinet Member or Chairman of any committee any question of which the above notice has not
been given; but a copy of any such question shall, if possible, be delivered to the Chief Executive not
later than 9:00am on the day of the meeting.
16.12.2 Editing of questions
Any written question may be edited both to bring it into proper form and to secure reasonable
brevity.
16.12.3 Supplementary question
If after a reply is given to a written question the Member who asked the question considers that the
reply requires clarification, he may ask once for clarification but otherwise no supplemental question
shall be put except by leave of the Chairman.
16.12.4 Restriction on number of questions
The number of written questions which may be asked pursuant to notice given in accordance with
paragraph 16.12.1 above by any one Member at any one meeting shall be limited to two.
16.12.5 Questions on reports
A Member may ask the Leader, Cabinet Member or Chairman of a committee any question on any
report of the Cabinet or a committee (other than a report which is for information only) when that
item is under consideration by the Council.
16.12.6 Other oral questions
A Member may ask any oral question of:
(i) the Chairman
(ii) the Leader
(iii) a Member of the Cabinet
i

(iv) the Chairman of any Committee or Sub-Committee or

ii
(v) the Member appointed by Essex County Council as its representative on the Essex Police,
Fire and Crime Panel, on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or which
affects Essex but which is not capable of being dealt with under paragraph 16.12.5.

Page 58

Appendix 2.2 - Report and appendices of the Task & Finish Group held on 26 February 2021
The time allotted at each meeting for the putting and answering of questions under this paragraph
shall not exceed 20 minutes, without the leave of the Chairman of the Council.
16.12.7 Form of answer
An answer may take the form of:
(i) a direct oral answer; or
(ii) where the desired information is contained in a publication of the Council, a reference to that
publication; or
(iii) where the Chief Executive considers that the reply to the question can conveniently be so given,
by a written answer circulated to the Members of the Council present at the meeting.
The person to whom a question has been put may, on reasons stated, decline to answer.

Page 59

Agenda Item 15
Committee:

Council

Date:

Title:

Update on Appeal Decisions and Associated
Costs since 1 May 2019

18 May 2021

Report
Author:

Gordon Glenday Assistant Director Planning
(01799 510601)

Summary
1. Following a request from Councillor Barker, this report provides an update on
the Planning Committee’s decisions since 1st May 2019. This report is to
update the position and, in particular, highlighting any appeal decisions and
any associated costs relating to these appeals incurred by the Council.
2. Please note that due to an error some of the previous data was incorrectly
entered into the database and therefore the information of previous reports
may not have been accurate. This has now been corrected and officers have
been informed of the correct process of entering the data.
3. That Council note the report.
Financial Implications
External: £16,058.60
Costs awarded against UDC: UTT/18/3369/FUL - £4,000;
UTT/18/2959/DFO - partial cost still waiting for the agreed amount.
Officer time: Approx. £39,525
Stansted (to 28 April 2021) - £1,035,122.74
Background Paper
3. Details of the appeal process can be viewed - Full Council report 16
December 2019 - Click Here
Impact
4.
Communication/Consultation
Community Safety
Equalities
Health and Safety

Page 60

Human Rights/Legal
Implications

The legal framework for planning appeals
is set out in the planning acts and related
regulations

Sustainability

This is a key factor in determining the
weight to be attached to material
considerations in an appeal

Ward-specific impacts

All

Workforce/Workplace

Explained in the report

Situation
5. Since 1 May 2019, the Planning Committee has considered 141 applications
(see Appendix 1).
Out of these 140 decisions:
- 19 were refused by the Planning Committee against the officer’s
recommendation.
- 4 have been deferred.
- To date, the council has received 28 appeals from the Planning Inspectorate
relating to decisions made at Planning Committee.
Of the 28 appeals there have been 18 decisions and 1 withdrawn:
7 Allowed following overturn at Committee
2 Dismiss following overturn at Committee
1 Allowed following non-determination by Committee
1 Dismissed following Non-Determination
7 Dismissed following Committee agreeing with Officer Recommendation.

Page 61

Appendix 1

REFERENCE

Officer
recommendation

Appeal
Decision

APPROVE

APPROVED

05-Jun-19

UTT/17/2100/FUL

Bullocks Farm
Bullocks Lane
Takeley
CM22 6TA

APPROVE

APPROVED

05-Jun-19

REFUSED

05-Jun-19

REFUSED

05-Jun-19 ALLOW

Page 62

UTT/18/3518/FUL

UTT/18/3293/FUL

UTT/19/0004/FUL

Branksome
Whiteditch Lane
Newport
Essex
CB11 3UD
APPROVE
Park View And Pleasant
View
Brick Kiln Lane
Rickling Green
Saffron Walden
CB11 3YH
APPROVE

Actual Decision

Date of
committee

ADDRESS
Holroyd Components
Ltd
Shire Hill Industrial
Estate
Shire Hill
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3AQ

Cost

Officer time £2,325

UTT/18/2523/FUL

Friarton
Chatter End Road
Farnham
CM23 1HL
Adj 25 Loompits Way
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 4BZ
20 Mill Close
Elsenham
Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire
CM22 6EG
Land South Oxleys
Close
Stortford Road
Clavering
CB11 4PB
Westons Yard
Chelmsford Road
White Roding
CM6 1RF

UTT/19/0362/FUL

Barn At Hill House
Cambridge Road
Quendon
Saffron Walden
CB11 3XJ

UTT/19/0484/OP

UTT/19/0043/FUL

UTT/19/0673/HHF

Page 63

UTT/18/3369/FUL

APPROVE

APPROVED

05-Jun-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

05-Jun-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

05-Jun-19

APPROVE

REFUSED

26-Jun-19 DISMISSED

APPROVE

APPROVED

26-Jun-19

APPROVE

REFUSED

26-Jun-19 DISMISSED

Officer time £2,325
Costs against
UDC - £4,001

Officer time £2,325

UTT/19/0671/FUL

Former Molecular
Products Site
Mill End
Thaxted
Essex
CM6 2LT
Land South Of The
Farmhouse
Old Mead Road
Henham
Hertfordshire

UTT/19/0966/FUL

UTT/19/0311/LB

Barn At Hill House
Cambridge Road
Quendon
CB11 3XJ

Page 64

UTT/19/0551/FUL

Land East Of
Dunmow Road
Aythorpe Roding
Essex
CM6 1PQ
Hammer Hill Farm
Stanbrook Road
Thaxted
Dunmow
CM6 2NH

UTT/19/0946/FUL

APPROVE

APPROVED

26-Jun-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

26-Jun-19
Officer time £2,325

REFUSE

REFUSED

26-Jun-19 DISMISSED

APPROVE

APPROVED

26-Jun-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

26-Jun-19

Land To The North Of
Chickney Road
Henham
Hertfordshire
UTT/19/0293/FUL

Officer time £2,325
APPROVE

REFUSED

24-Jul-19 DISMISSED

UTT/19/0391/FUL

APPROVE

REFUSED

24-Jul-19

UTT/19/0829/FUL

The Old Cement Works,
Land Behind
Thaxted Road
Saffron Walden
CB10 2UQ
APPROVE

APPROVED

24-Jul-19

UTT/19/0427/FUL

Haydens House
Onslow Green
Barnston
CM6 3PP

APPROVE

APPROVED

24-Jul-19

APPROVE

REFUSED

Land At Bury Water
Lane
Bury Water Lane
Newport

Page 65

Land To The West Of
Bonningtons Farm
Station Road
Hatfield Broad Oak
UTT/16/3565/OP
Land To The South Of
Braintree Road
Felsted
Essex
UTT/18/3529/OP

APPROVE

NON
DETERMINATION

21-Aug-19
Officer time £2,325
21-Aug-19 ALLOW

UTT/19/1389/FUL

UTT/19/1115/FUL

22 Thaxted Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3AA
Brazille
14 St Johns Crescent
Stansted
CM24 8JT
Unit A Ashdon Road
Commercial Centre
Ashdon Road
Saffron Walden

UTT/19/0957/FUL

Page 66

UTT/19/0514/HHF

Wearns Folly
9 Carmen Street
Great Chesterford
Saffron Walden
CB10 1NR

UTT/18/1827/FUL

Bricketts
London Road
Newport
CB11 3PP

APPROVE

APPROVED

21-Aug-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

21-Aug-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

21-Aug-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

21-Aug-19

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Sep-19 DISMISSED

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Sep-19 ALLOW

Land East Of
Little Walden Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/18/2959/DFO

Officer time £2,325
Officer time £2,325
Partial costs
awarded
against UDC -

Land To The North Of
De Vigier Avenue
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/18/2297/OP

UTT/19/0899/FUL

Page 67

UTT/19/0900/LB

Parsonage Farm
Church End
Church Street
Henham
Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire
CM22 6AN
Parsonage Farm
Church End
Church Street
Henham
Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire
CM22 6AN
Land North Of
Henham Road
Debden
Essex

UTT/19/1054/OP

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Sep-19 DISMISSED

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Sep-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Sep-19
Officer time £2,325

REFUSE

REFUSED

06-Oct-19 DISMISSED

APPROVE

APPROVED

16-Oct-19

Land At
Thaxted Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/18/2820/FUL

Officer time £2,325

Land To The South Of
School Lane
Takeley
UTT/19/1583/FUL

UTT/19/1725/FUL

Page 68

UTT/19/1411/FUL

APPROVE
Land At Acre Croft
High Street
Great Chesterford
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB10 1PL
Endeavour
Littlebury Green Road
Littlebury
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 4XB

UTT/19/1995/FUL

Railway Arms
Station Road
Saffron Walden
CB11 3HQ
Fry Art Gallery
19A Castle Street
Saffron Walden
CB10 1BD

UTT/19/1253/FUL

Millway Stationery Ltd
Chapel Hill
Stansted
CM24 8AP

UTT/19/0761/FUL

APPROVED

16-Oct-19

Officer time £2,325
APPROVE

REFUSED

16-Oct-19 DISMISSED

APPROVE

REFUSED

16-Oct-19

APPROVE

REFUSED

16-Oct-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

16-Oct-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

16-Oct-19

UTT/19/1870/HHF

UTT/19/1869/HHF

UTT/19/2398/TCA

Page 69

35 Station Road
Wendens Ambo
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 4LB
33 Station Road
Wendens Ambo
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 4LB
2 Barley Hall Cottages
Parsonage Downs
Dunmow
CM6 2AT
Land South Of
Rush Lane
Elsenham

UTT/19/0437/OP

APPROVE

APPROVED

16-Oct-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

16-Oct-19

NO OBJECTION

NO OBJECTION

16-Oct-19

£4,520
APPROVE

REFUSED

06-Nov-19 ALLOW

UTT/19/1823/FUL

Saffron Walden County
High School
Audley End Road
Saffron Walden
CB11 4UH

APPROVE

APPROVED

06-Nov-19

UTT/18/1027/FUL

Land To The East Of
Whiteditch Lane
Newport
CB11 3UD

REFUSE

REFUSED

06-Nov-19

UTT/19/1524/FUL

Great Chalks
High Street
Hatfield Broad Oak
CM22 7HQ

Officer time £2,325
APPROVE

REFUSED

06-Nov-19 ALLOW

APPROVE

APPROVED

06-Nov-19

REFUSE

REFUSED

06-Nov-19

UTT/19/1463/FUL

Whitehall Hotel
Church End
Broxted
CM6 2BZ
Land At Robels
Cutlers Green
Cutlers Green Lane
Thaxted
Dunmow
Essex
CM6 2QD

UTT/18/3399/FUL

Former Walden Dairy
135 Thaxted Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3BJ

APPROVE

APPROVED

06-Nov-19

UTT/19/1527/FUL

Great Chalks
High Street
Hatfield Broad Oak
CM22 7HQ

APPROVE

REFUSED

06-Nov-19

UTT/19/1932/FUL

Page 70

Land East Of Foxley
House
Cambridge Road
Quendon
UTT/19/1301/FUL

UTT/19/2340/HHF

Page 71

21 Blythwood Gardens
Stansted
CM24 8HQ
Land East Of
Warehouse Villas
Stebbing Road
Stebbing
Essex

UTT/19/0476/OP

UTT/19/2342/FUL

Land Adj
5 Pound Gate
Stebbing
CM6 3RH

UTT/19/2545/FUL

Crossways
Station Road
Elsenham
CM22 6LA

APPROVE

APPROVED

06-Nov-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

06-Nov-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Dec-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Dec-19
Officer time £2,325

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Dec-19 ALLOW

UTT/19/2022/FUL

Midden
Top Road
Wimbish
CB10 2XJ

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Dec-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Dec-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Dec-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Dec-19

APPROVE

APPROVED

15-Jan-20

Electricity Sub Station 3
Chesterford Park
Little Chesterford
Essex
UTT/19/2442/FUL

Page 72

Little Garnetts
Bishops Green
High Easter Road
Barnston
Dunmow
Essex
UTT/19/2606/LB
CM6 1NF
Little Garnetts
Bishops Green
High Easter Road
Barnston
Dunmow
Essex
UTT/19/2613/NMA CM6 1NF
Land At Holmwood
Whiteditch Lane
Newport
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/19/1064/DFO CB11 3UD

Land To The South Of
Stortford Road
Little Canfield
Essex
UTT/19/1166/OP

UTT/19/1864/FUL

Page 73

UTT/19/2557/FUL

Terriers Farm
Boyton End
Thaxted
Dunmow
CM6 2RD
The New Farm House
Keeres Green
Aythorpe Roding
Dunmow
Essex
CM6 1PG

APPROVE

REFUSED

15-Jan-20 WITHDRAWN

APPROVE

APPROVED

15-Jan-20

APPROVE

REFUSED

15-Jan-20

UTT/18/0460/FUK

Stansted Airport

APPROVE

REFUSED

29-Jan-20 In Progress

UTT/19/1802/OP

Land Off The Broadway
Dunmow

REFUSE

REFUSED

19-Feb-20

APPROVE

REFUSED

19-Feb-20 ALLOW

Land East Of Thaxted
Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/19/2355/DFO

£11,538.60

To 28/04/2021
£1,035,122.74

Officer time £2,325

Land To The South
West Of
London Road
Little Chesterford
Essex
UTT/19/0573/OP

APPROVE

APPROVED

19-Feb-20

Land East And North Of
Clifford Smith Drive
Felsted

APPROVE

APPROVED

19-Feb-20

UTT/19/2993/OP

Cott Moor
Old Mead Road
Henham
CM22 6JG

APPROVE

APPROVED

19-Feb-20

UTT/18/3524/FUL

Frogs Hall
Bambers Green Road
Takeley
CM22 6PE

NON
NON
DETERMINATION DETERMINATION

19-Feb-20 DISMISSED

UTT/19/2809/FUL

The Willows
Monk Street
Thaxted
CM6 2NR

APPROVE

19-Feb-20

UTT/19/2118/OP

Page 74

APPROVED

Officer time £2,325

UTT/19/2159/FUL

Gladwyns Farm
Sheering Road
Hatfield Heath
CM22 7LL

APPROVE

UTT/18/3525/LB

Frogs Hall
Bambers Green Road
Takeley
CM22 6PE

NON
NON
DETERMINATION DETERMINATION

19-Feb-20 ALLOW

APPROVE

APPROVED

19-Feb-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

19-Feb-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Mar-20

Page 75

24 Church Street
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/19/2793/LB
CB10 1JW
Building 60
Chesterford Park
Little Chesterford
Great Chesterford
Essex
UTT/20/0136/NMA CB10 1XJ

APPROVED

19-Feb-20

Land North Of
Bartholomew Close
Bartholomew Close
Great Chesterford
UTT/19/2288/FUL

Officer time £2,325

UTT/19/2875/FUL

UTT/19/2777/FUL

Holroyd Components
Ltd
Shire Hill Industrial
Estate
Shire Hill
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3AQ
The Stables
May Walk
Elsenham Road
Stansted
CM24 8SS
Land West Of Bury
Farm
Station Road
Felsted
Essex

APPROVE

APPROVED

18-Mar-20

REFUSED

18-Mar-20 DISMISSED

APPROVE

APPROVED

20-May-20

UTT/20/0707/HHF

6 Farmadine
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3HP

APPROVE

APPROVED

20-May-20

UTT/20/0552/TPO

6 Farmadine
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3HP

APPROVE

APPROVED

20-May-20

Page 76

APPROVE

UTT/18/2508/OP

Officer time £2,325

Land East Of
Little Walden Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/19/3068/DFO

APPROVE

APPROVED

03-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

03-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

03-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

03-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

03-Jun-20

Saffron Walden Castle
Museum Street
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/20/0670/FUL

Page 77

UTT/20/0187/HHF

1 Granta Mead Close
Newport
CB11 3HZ
Saffron Walden Castle
Museum Street
Saffron Walden
Essex

UTT/20/0672/LB
Land At
Thaxted Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
UTT/20/1081/NMA

Land East Of St
Edmunds Lane
Dunmow
UTT/19/1508/FUL

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Jun-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

01-Jul-20

Land North Of
Henham Road
Debden
Essex
UTT/19/3113/OP

Page 78

UTT/20/0029/FUL

UTT/20/0522/HHF

UTT/20/0386/FUL

Land At Pond Mead
Cottage
High Street
Widdington
CB11 3SB
Midden
Top Road
Wimbish
Essex
CB10 2XJ
Remarc
Dunmow Road
Takeley
Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire
CM22 6SP

APPROVED

22-Jul-20

UTT/20/1143/FUL

Saffron Walden County
High School
Audley End Road
Saffron Walden
CB11 4UH

APPROVE

APPROVED

22-Jul-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

22-Jul-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

22-Jul-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

22-Jul-20

Page 79

UTT/20/0757/DFO

Land West Of Maranello
Watch House Green
Felsted
CM6 3EF
APPROVE

Land West Of
Stortford Road
Clavering
Essex

UTT/19/2852/FUL

UTT/20/1108/DFO

UTT/20/1306/FUL

Holly Hedge
Woodmans Lane
Duddenhoe End
Elmdon
CB11 4UU
Police Office - The
Lodge
56 London Road
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 4ED

Land South Of
Stortford Road
Dunmow
UTT/18/2574/OP

UTT/19/2900/DFO

Bricketts
London Road
Newport
CB11 3PP

Page 80

UTT/19/3125/LB

APPROVED

19-Aug-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

19-Aug-20

REFUSE

APPROVED

19-Aug-20

APPROVE

REFUSED

19-Aug-20 VALID

APPROVE

REFUSED

19-Aug-20 VALID

Land East Of Braintree
Road (B1256)
Dunmow

UTT/19/1219/FUL

UTT/19/3124/FUL

APPROVE

Brook End Farm
Stables
Easton Lodge
Park Road
Little Easton
Dunmow
Essex
CM6 2BD
Brook End Farm
Stables
Easton Lodge
Park Road
Little Easton
Dunmow

Essex
CM6 2BD

UTT/20/1529/TPO

Tindelles
Carmen Street
Great Chesterford
Saffron Walden
CB10 1NR

Page 81

APPROVE

APPROVED

19-Aug-20

REFUSE

REFUSED

09-Sep-20 VALID

APPROVE

APPROVED

09-Sep-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

09-Sep-20

Land To The West Of
Buttleys Lane
Dunmow

UTT/19/2354/OP
Former Parking Court
Adjacent To 3
Gold Close
Elsenham
Hertfordshire

UTT/20/1082/FUL
Land West Of The
White House
Dunmow Road
Takeley
Hertfordshire
UTT/19/0904/OP

UTT/20/0765/OP

The Chase
Jacks Lane
Takeley
CM22 6NT

APPROVE

APPROVED

09-Sep-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

09-Sep-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

30-Sep-20

UTT/20/0336/DFO

5 Station Road
Great Dunmow
CM6 1EJ
Land South East Of
Great Hallingbury
Manor
Bedlars Green Road
Tilekiln Green
Great Hallingbury
CM22 7TJ

UTT/19/1437/FUL

77 High Street
Great Dunmow
CM6 1AE

APPROVE

APPROVED

30-Sep-20

UTT/19/1585/FUL

Almont House
High Lane
Stansted
CM24 8LE

APPROVE

REFUSED

30-Sep-20

UTT/20/1032/HHF

Page 82

Land Off
Stevens Lane
Felsted
Essex
UTT/20/0028/DFO

UTT/20/1603/FUL

Page 83

UTT/20/1270/HHF

UTT/20/2158/TCA

UTT/20/1596/OP

APPROVE

APPROVED

30-Sep-20

Land Rear Of The
Chestnuts
Bishops Way
Newport
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3PA

APPROVE

REFUSED

30-Sep-20 INPROG

Victoria Cottage
Deynes Road
Debden
CB11 3LG

APPROVE

APPROVED

30-Sep-20

NO OBJECTION

NO OBJECTION

30-Sep-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

28-Oct-20

32 Bridge Street
Saffron Walden
CB10 1BU
Land At Maranello
Watch House Green
Felsted
Dunmow
Essex
CM6 3EF

APPROVE

APPROVED

28-Oct-20

UTT/20/0084/FUL

Elmswood
Brick End
Broxted
Dunmow
CM6 2BL

APPROVE

APPROVED

28-Oct-20

UTT/20/0561/FUL

Poplars Farm
Broad Bridge Road
Aythorpe Roding
CM6 1RY

APPROVE

APPROVED

28-Oct-20

UTT/20/0835/FUL

Midden
Top Road
Wimbish
Essex
CB10 2XJ

APPROVE

APPROVED

28-Oct-20

UTT/20/2284/HHF

17 Springhill Road
Saffron Walden
CB11 4AH

APPROVE

APPROVED

28-Oct-20

Page 84

UTT/20/0083/FUL

Elmswood
Brick End
Broxted
Dunmow
CM6 2BL

UTT/20/1711/HHF

Rowans
Ashdon Road
Saffron Walden
CB10 2AA
Land At Parsonage
Meadow
The Street
High Easter
Essex

UTT/20/1208/PIP

APPROVE

APPROVED

28-Oct-20

REFUSE

REFUSED

28-Oct-20

Page 85

Land Behind
The Old Cement Works
Thaxted Road
Saffron Walden
Essex

UTT/20/0864/FUL

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Nov-20 INPROG

UTT/19/2149/OP

Sandhurst
Great Canfield Road
Takeley
Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire
CM22 6SU

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Nov-20 VALID

UTT/20/1334/FUL

Land Adj Branksome
Whiteditch Lane
Newport
CB11 3UD

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Nov-20

UTT/20/1753/FUL

UTT/20/1937/FUL

Page 86

UTT/20/2169/FUL

Friarton
Chatter End Road
Farnham
CM23 1HL
Homely (Walnut Tree
Cottage)
The Street
High Easter
Chelmsford
Essex
CM1 4QW
The Pyghle
The Downs
Stebbing
Dunmow
Essex
CM6 3TU
Land Opposite To Nos
1-5
Debden Drive
Wimbish
Essex

UTT/20/1676/FUL

UTT/20/2624/FUL

J F Knight Roadworks
Ltd
Copthall Lane
Thaxted
CM6 2LG

APPROVE

REFUSED

18-Nov-20

APPROVE

REFUSED

16-Dec-20 VALID

APPROVE

REFUSED

16-Dec-20 VALID

APPROVE

APPROVED

16-Dec-20

APPROVE

APPROVED

20-Jan-21

Land North Of
Henham Road
Debden
Essex
UTT/20/2655/DFO

APPROVE

APPROVED

20-Jan-21

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Feb-21

APPROVE

REFUSED

17-Feb-21

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Feb-21

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Feb-21

Land West Of
Woodside Way
Woodside Way
Dunmow
UTT/20/2220/DFO

Page 87

Land South Of Vernons
Close
Mill Road
Henham
Hertfordshire

UTT/20/0604/OP

UTT/20/0921/DFO

UTT/20/2450/FUL

Land North Of Ashdon
Road
Ashdon Road
Saffron Walden
CB10 2NQ
Barn Adj Little
Mortimers
Water End
Water End Road
Ashdon
Essex

Plot 7
Land North Of
Bartholomew Close
Bartholomew Close
Great Chesterford
UTT/20/3263/FUL

UTT/20/2009/FUL

Page 88

UTT/20/2148/DFO

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Feb-21

Land To The West Of
Radwinter Road
Ashdon
CB10 2ET

APPROVE

REFUSED

17-Feb-21

Land To The North And
East Of Priory Lodge
Station Road
Little Dunmow

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Feb-21

APPROVE

REFUSED

17-Feb-21

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Feb-21

Land East Of
Friars Lane
Hatfield Heath
Hertfordshire
UTT/20/2299/FUL

UTT/20/2541/FUL

Cott Moor
Old Mead Road
Henham
Bishops Stortford
Hertfordshire
CM22 6JG

UTT/19/1744/OP

Former Friends School
Mount Pleasant Road
Saffron Walden
CB11 3EB

REFUSE

REFUSED

17-Mar-21

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Mar-21

APPROVE

APPROVED

17-Mar-21

REFUSE

REFUSED

14-Apr-21

APPROVE

REFUSED

14-Apr-21

Land West Of
Woodside Way
Woodside Way
Dunmow
UTT/20/3419/DFO

Page 89

UTT/20/3473/FUL

East Cottage
Thaxted Road
Wimbish
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB10 2UT
Land North Of Bedwell
Road And East Of Old
Mead Road
Ugley And Henham

UTT/19/2266/OP

UTT/20/2175/DFO

Land South Of
Radwinter Road
Saffron Walden
Essex

North Of Laburnham
View
High Street
Elmdon
Essex
UTT/20/2486/FUL

UTT/20/3016/FUL

Page 90

UTT/21/0410/HHF

APPROVE

APPROVED

14-Apr-21

Land Rear Of Malt
Place
Cornells Lane
Widdington
CB11 3SP

APPROVE

APPROVED

14-Apr-21

6 Monks Hill
Saffron Walden
Essex
CB11 3BW

APPROVE

APPROVED

14-Apr-21

Planning Portfolio Lead Member Update Report
Full Council, 18th May 2021

Local Plan
The Council has just completed the initial consultation on its Local Plan, this is
on track with the timetable agreed in the Local Development Scheme in
October 2020. This consultation has been split into 9 different themes, with
each theme opening with a discussion in public, in the Community
Stakeholder Forum. Uttlesford has also had two specific consultation
meetings with Town and Parish Councils to explain and respond to questions
on the themes. These discussions were intended to spark a wider
conversation and ideas and encourage people to submit representations to
the consultation. These meetings were broadcast live and uploaded to the
Council’s YouTube channel. At the time of writing Uttlesford has not yet
completed the processing of representations received, however we estimate
that we have received just over 600 representations.
Alongside the Local Plan consultation, a call for sites was held, calling for the
submission of sites for the Council to consider for the Local Plan. For the first
time in Uttlesford this included a call for ‘green sites’ to be submitted. At the
time of writing, it is estimated that we received between 200 and 300 sites.
We will be aiming to publish this list in June / July, and then hold a
consultation on the technical aspects of the site assessments.
This consultation programme is innovative, being run differently from the way
consultations on local plans are normally run and is designed to secure very
early engagement before a single decision on the plan is made. Rather than
the Council writing a draft plan and asking for others’ views on the draft plan,
the public’s views are being sought before a single word of draft consultation
policies have been written. The open, discursive nature of the consultation is
also intended to encourage engagement from those that do not normally get
involved in the planning system. Comments received will then be used to
help draft the first version of the Council’s Local Plan.
The preparatory evidential work and community engagement is being
undertaken at a pace conforming to the programme set for it.
In the autumn 2020, the government consulted on changes to the standard
housing methodology for calculating housing need. Had these changes been
made the Council’s housing need would be over 1,200 homes per year. The
Council along with others, made representations to the government objecting
to this change, these objections were successful and the changes to the
calculation of housing need did not impact Uttlesford. The calculation of
housing need for Uttlesford results in a need of 706 homes per year. The
Council will be taking this figure into account when developing its Local Plan.

Page 91

A detailed programme of work to December 2021 was agreed on the Local
Plan at Local Plan Leadership Group on 29 April. This sets out an ambitious
timetable of work to ensure the timetable set out in the Local Development
Scheme is met. This includes LPLG making recommendations to Cabinet
over the summer on the objectives, housing numbers and preliminary outline
strategy for the Local Plan.

Development Management

The Development Management function continues to deliver business as
usual, with no reduction in planning applications submitted through the year.
Indeed, recently submitted applications have been on the increase. The
development industry is clearly preparing to build itself outside of the current
downturn of the economy due to the pandemic and no doubt taking into
account the lack of a recent Local Plan and absence of a five year land
supply. There has also been an upturn in the numbers of householder
applications for changes for homeworking and in response to the buoyant
housing market brought about by the Stamp Duty Holiday.
The pandemic has brought the challenges of virtual Planning Committees,
and Uttlesford has been one of the leaders in the County in delivery of virtual
Planning Committee meetings from very early on in the pandemic in May
2020. The challenge is now the return to physical Committees following the
Government’s decision not to extend the period of emergency powers.
Officers continue to deal with the full range of planning applications and preapplication discussions ranging from rear extensions to proposals for major
new housing developments. We continue to encourage developers to enter
into Planning Performance Agreements (PPAs), which of course generate
fees payable to the Council, so that we can engage local communities in
planning proposals before formal applications are submitted. By doing this, we
are already finding that developers are hearing what members and local
community representatives think about the initial proposals advanced and in
many cases, the developers are amending their applications to take on board
these initial comments. As part of this early engagement, developers are also
encouraged to take their proposals to the Essex Quality Design Panel for an
external peer review of their proposals – again with the view to address
potential issues, particularly in relation to design, before their planning
application is submitted. This approach is becoming the default approach and
should bear dividends as better framed planning applications emerge on this.
One example of this was the successful reporting and approval of the two
sites north of Woodside Way, Great Dunmow, where the early and continued
engagement of the community and reliance on high quality design resulted in
a scheme positively embraced by the community and the Planning
Committee.

Page 92

Progress has been made with the reporting to Scrutiny Committee, due to be
submitted on 26 May, of the Task and Finish Group Study on Section 106s.
This will finally inform the Council’s improved approach to Section 106s,
including community involvement, consistency of approach and maximising
the effective delivery of infrastructure through emerging development.

Page 93

Environment & Green Issues Portfolio Holder Update Report
Full Council, 18th May 2021

Strategic Projects
The Council has appointed a Climate Change Project Officer, Chloë Fiddy, who has
been in post since April 19th.
This means that the Action Plan can be progressed with priorities set for
workstreams and best use of funding. Work is under way to review the actions
Uttlesford must take to meet its zero carbon commitments.
Projects will initially focus attention on the highest emitting sectors of the economy –
transport and energy, as well as ensuring that there are robust plans in place to
repair biodiversity loses and conserve water. The Climate Change Committee’s
(CCC) most recent report the Sixth Carbon Budget has been adopted by government
and provides valuable guidance to local authorities.
Few actions can be carried out without the support and collaboration of other
authorities, central government, local residents and local businesses. The Council
will be engaging directly with residents on specific projects to identify baselines,
attitudes and barriers, as well as to ask for specific highly localised input on topics
such as biodiversity.
Very broadly, in terms of transport, the Council will be supporting the national
transition to low carbon vehicles. Recognising that notwithstanding the future
transition to low emission vehicles, we still need to reduce our reliance on vehicles
and replace small journeys with active travel or e-assisted travel, the Council will be
working towards facilitating active travel as a realistic option for our residents and
workers.
In terms of energy, while scientific debate is still ongoing over the precise methods of
heating our homes in the future, what is certain is that many homes will need to be
made more energy efficient to enable future technologies, and the Council will be
focusing on facilitating this. Our district will be ready for new technology adoption.
In general terms we all need to recycle more and use our products for longer. The
Council will have a part to play in this and options are being explored.
While the ‘Balanced’ pathway is the most likely scenario put forward by the CCC,
there are some very exciting scenarios explored in the ‘Innovation’ pathway, and the
Council will be exploring options for Uttlesford to be at the forefront of green
innovation, especially where this will be of benefit to our local economy and
employment.
Biodiversity is not specifically addressed as part of the CCC’s remit, but logically it
must be addressed as part of the climate strategy. Plans are being put together for

Page 94

an approach including both a top-down study and a bottom-up citizen science project
which makes the most of our huge knowledge base here in the district. Layered
together, these approaches will enable the Council to identify opportunities and
areas for improvement. Conservation of water sits within this project.
The Local Plan team continues to research best practice as well as opportunities for
the district to raise the bar on climate matters.
Planning Officers are now using the recently agreed Interim Climate Change
Planning Policies to make sure new developments coming forward take on board as
many sustainable initiatives as possible before applications are submitted.

Page 95

Communities, Youth, Public Safety & Emergency Planning
portfolio. Report for Full Council - May 2021
Public Safety
I am pleased to report that as we ease into some form of normality and away from the restrictions of lockdowns,
the Officers in the Communities team are looking forward to being able to get back out into our communities. That
is where they are needed and that is where I support their eagerness to return to what they do best.
Rural matters
Plans to revisit farms and landowners are continuing and the community safety partnership (the CSP) is looking to
expand the Reaching Our Rural Communities Project. The CSP are looking to hold another engagement day where,
the Farming Network Community, CVSU, Next Chapter, RET and our Officers from the UDC communities’ team will
be visiting more of our farms. We will be raising awareness of Domestic Abuse, Suicide Prevention, Farm Watch,
reporting methods, the use of What 3 Words as well as using the CSP horse trailer, which provides us with the
ability to serve hot drinks and light refreshments as well as being the focal point to indicate our presence.
We will also be accompanying the CSVU who have a program mapped out to visit villages in the district for the
purpose of engaging with residents. They are hoping to encourage socialising, meeting others in the village and
signposting those who are seeking assistance in some other shape or form. The CSP horse trailer will also be used
for this project. Please watch your respective village Facebook pages for dates and times when we will be down
your way.
Strategic Assessment
Each year a Strategic Assessment is prepared for the CSP with the assistance of Essex Police Criminal Intelligence
analysts and our own UDC community safety officer (Angi Greneski) who is the administrator for the Partnership.
The aim and purpose of this document is to assist the CSP to determine the strategic priorities for the forthcoming
financial year. These priorities provide information to the Partnership for their Action Plan, which in turn assist in
the allocation of appropriate resources to tackle the issues identified. Consequently, it is worth remembering the
Crime and Disorder Act, 1998 places responsibility on the community safety partnership to annually review levels
and patterns of crime and disorder. In so doing, this will support local communities to counter the perception,
threat, and consequence of criminal and anti-social behaviour by striving to reduce both crime and the fear of
crime, and to reduce re-offending. Community Safety work encompasses anti-social behaviour, disorder and the
misuse of drugs, alcohol, and other substances. The pandemic restrictions have impacted on crime committed and
reported in 2020 and the first quarter of this year which has resulted in crime types experiencing unprecedented
significantly reduced or increased levels. As restrictions have changed, crime levels have continually readjusted.
Consequently the crime data produced within the pandemic environment may not accurately inform what
priorities to be selected for this year.
The previous Strategic Assessment dated for last year was published shortly before the pandemic restrictions were
implemented in March 2020. In this circumstance, the Partnership has agreed to adopt the principles identified in
that year for this period of 2021-2022 as there has not been an opportunity to address them. Therefore, as last
year, the priorities will be: (1) To protect vulnerable people
(2) To reduce crime, re-offending, and the fear of crime
1

Page 96

(3) To continue effective partnership working, to meet emerging local threats and issues
One of our three priorities within the Uttlesford Community Safety Partnership is to protect vulnerable people,
and following an in depth analysis with our partners of the emerging issues for Uttlesford, domestic abuse came
out as the “hidden harm” where the partnership could collectively provide the most impact on reducing this crime.
Recent data obtained from Next Chapter shows they have supported 86 clients from Uttlesford from April 2020
to March 2021. This amounts to 7.4% of the total number of clients supported by the Community Outreach team
at Next Chapter.
At the April meeting of the CSP it was agreed to establish leads for each of these three priorities and work has
commenced on annually reviewing levels and patterns of crime and disorder. Also, at that meeting a new Chair of
the CSP was elected as I stood down from that position as my two-year tenure as per the constitution came to an
end. I am pleased to report that David Messan who is head of the North Essex Probation & Aftercare Service will
guide the partnership for the next 2-years.
Working with and in schools
The CSP will be funding a virtual Crucial Crew project this year, which is due to take place at the end of May. In
order to ensure the event remains relevant and meets local priorities, a multi-award-winning theatre production
company has been commissioned to develop a bespoke production piece, targeted at year 6 pupils, that will
centre on child exploitation, in addition to a focus on grooming, county lines and knife crime. Child exploitation
linked to gangs and county lines, is an issue that affects the whole of Essex, including Uttlesford. Incidents of
violent crime are on the increase across the County with intelligence suggesting a rise in the number of young
people carrying a knife. Our aim is to raise awareness before secondary school transition, to help children
recognise an exploitative friendship or relationship, via a powerful theatrical performance and interactive
workshop.
I would encourage members to go along and watch one of these presentations and by so doing see and understand
our UDC officers in action as the Crucial Crew. If you are interested please contact me and I will arrange for you to
attend.
Violence towards women
All of us I am sure would have been shocked to hear of the tragic death in South London of Sarah Everard. As a
result, Councillor John Lodge, as Leader of UDC asked me as the Cabinet Portfolio with responsibility for public
safety to look to see if there was anything, we as a Council could do to help in eradicating this form of violence.
Clearly no woman should feel unsafe in her own community, Sadly the truth is that many do. No woman should
feel scared or be threatened going out, meeting friends, or walking home, but the reality is that many do. The
events two months ago have brought into sharp focus something that is very wrong in our society, something we
need to change. We must seize this opportunity. We must try and make a different society.
As we reflect on the tragic death of Sarah Everard and the national outpouring of emotion that has happened
since, the sad truth is that this abuse, harassment, and violence should not be happening in the first place. Women
should not be scared to live their lives, to walk around their communities or simply be who they are.
When Councillor Lodge originally spoke to me, we agreed we should do what we can to help women to be safe
and to feel safe. To be respected. To live their lives free from fear. We should not tolerate male violence against
women. We must root it out and make it clear there is no place in our world for this kind of behavior and stop it.
We need to create a society where women can live free from the fear of violence which has a real psychological
and emotional impact. So often women live in fear and cannot live their lives as they be able to do. This is a big
ask and as a district council in reality it is probably beyond our capability to make a massive impact. That said, we
should not sweep the subject to one side and thereby ignore it. We can play our part and not just sit on our hands
leaving it to others. Resultant from this 2

Page 97

Both myself and Officers within the community team, together with other agencies discussed the issue in depth
and as a result it was agreed we should visit schools and through the education process engage with children in
their formative years. By so doing illustrate to them that abuse towards females is unacceptable in our society.
As a result of this decision our Officers are looking to work with the same theatre group, as mentioned above, to
raise awareness around Domestic Abuse, Consent and Healthy Relationships. The ‘Bruise You Can’t See’ is a
theatre/workshop experience centred around domestic abuse. The intention is to provide an insight initially to
members as to how this production works before we take it out to all our secondary schools within the district.
The production will actively explore the early warning signs of unhealthy and abusive behaviour in intimate
relationships. It will explore what a healthy relationship looks like, the various forms of abusive behaviour and
advise as to how to access help and support. This includes issues around consent. There will be a live play, followed
by a stimulating lively discussion with thought provoking questions, whilst inviting the audience to walk in the
shoes of the characters to recognise the differences between each other’s views and beliefs, and the issues that
can surround that. In 2019 the Uttlesford Community Safety Partnership commissioned the creation of this
production, and the delivery of performances at Saffron Walden County High School. We are looking to provide
this project to all our secondary schools. We hope that members will support this and come along and take part.
Further announcements will be made when the date and time has been confirmed.
One of our three priorities within the Uttlesford Community Safety Partnership is to protect vulnerable people,
and following an in depth analysis with our partners of the emerging issues for Uttlesford, domestic abuse came
out as the “hidden harm” where the partnership could collectively provide the most impact on reducing this crime.
Recent data obtained from Next Chapter shows that they have supported 86 clients from Uttlesford from April
2020 to March 2021. This amounts to 7.4% of the total number of clients supported by the Community Outreach
team at Next Chapter.

Police, Fire & Rescue Services
Anti-Social Behaviour
We have recently seen a rise in anti-social behaviour in Thaxted. I thought I should share this with you to hear
about some partnership between Essex Police and Uttlesford District Council Community Safety Team jointly
working together within Thaxted to discourage this type of behaviour by a relatively small minority of young
people.
Last month a total of 7 homes were visited by UDC Officers and members of the Local Police Community Team.
These addresses were targeted, being based on local intelligence and each young person at these addresses were
served along with their parents a warning letter. These warning letters highlighted the different types of incidents
of antisocial behaviour that had been occurring recently in the village. The letters mentioned that it was believed
they may be responsible for the events, or they had been present when these events had occurred. All parents
were at home and nearly all were happy to assist our Officers in talking to their child about the impact their
behaviour was having in the local community. The letters also stated that the behaviour must stop immediately,
but that police investigations were continuing. We have received further intelligence since delivering these letters,
including who may be responsible together with further information regarding possible drug dealing.
I would urge all members, where you can, to reassure your community that the Community Safety Partnership is
working together to tackle these kinds of issue and that any information is useful, if it is sent directly to our UDC
community safety officer (Angi Greneski, email: agreneski@uttlesford.gov.uk), Essex Police via 101 or on their
Website or if the person reporting wishes to remain anonymous then use Crime stoppers (Tel: 0800 555 111) but
certainly not on Facebook as this isn’t a reporting platform!
3

Page 98

Fire prevention and protection
Essex County Fire and Rescue Service (ECFRS) has launched an interactive data tool on Essex's Open Data platform;
it is a dashboard that allows anyone to search through their incident data, and where new data will be added to
on a monthly basis.
The dashboard has been structured based on different incident category types and includes a data dictionary and
user guide and will be used to help to target ECFRS prevention and protection work to areas seeing higher demand
of their response function. It will provide communities with insights about what’s happening in their local
community and beyond.
To use the tool visit https://data.essex.gov.uk/dataset/e7dgq/fire-service-incidents-dashboard
Scams
The CSP distributed 38,000 ‘Scam Awareness booklets’, to residents across Uttlesford in April. The booklet focused
on scam prevention and staying safe online. Maldon District Council are now implementing the same idea for
their residents. Another Community Safety Booklet is due to be distributed, providing information around safety
messages, and highlighting the work of the partnership.
Violence and Vulnerability
I am not sure many of you will be familiar with The Essex Violence and Vulnerability Partnership and their work.
For this reason, I am taking this opportunity to hopefully give you some insight as to their purpose. Fiona Gardner,
our Communities, Health & Well-being manager and I are members of the Safer Essex Group who were essentially
the parent group for forming this Partnership.
Essentially, they are charged with reducing violence in our communities across Essex and the impact of drug driven
violence being the key priority. Working together the Partnership has tested and trialled a range of interventions
and through careful evaluation has developed a strategic approach that is delivering significant results in the fight
against violent crime. Working together the Partnership closely aligns activity to prevent violence and protect the
vulnerable with strong, robust enforcement activity. Across the County the wider strategic approach includes:
• Identifying and tackling organised crime gangs, County Lines, and drug supply.
• Delivering a proactive, robust local enforcement programme in partnership with communities.
• Reducing the risk of young or vulnerable people being exploited by gangs and help those involved in gangs
to break away.
While their report focuses on the work undertaken to reduce the risk of exploitation it is important to recognise
that this work is part of a broader strategic approach. This approach has started to turn the tide of violent crime
in Essex with the rate of growth of violence in communities slowing over the last two years and early signs that
this will start to fall. I would also stress at this present time thankfully we are not experiencing this form of violence
in Uttlesford. That is not to say we should be complacent and we are far from forming such a mindset.
As the Partnership has continued to develop, so has their understanding of the specific nature of the problem we
all collectively face and importantly how we can intervene to reduce the risk to young people by breaking the
business models used by county line gangs, which has such a devastating impact in this county.
We now know the profile of those in Essex who use drugs and whose activity fuels the violence that goes hand in
hand with drugs. This has allowed the partnership to develop interventions to focus on users, reinforcing to them
the real cost and impact of their activity upon society. Through the development of a serious problem profile the
partnership now has a much better understanding of the small number of individuals who cause disproportionate
levels of harm in the communities. How they act and importantly how to identify people early and tackle the
behaviour, is key in preventing them from affecting communities.
4

Page 99

The Partnership work in Accident and Emergency Units is just one example of where this level of insight has led to
developing an early intervention by trained youth workers. This has proven to be very successful with many young
people engaged and continuing with ongoing support. This ability to target the right people, in the right way and
at the right time is enabling the partnership to change the course of these young people’s lives and prevent future
violence happening. This targeted approach has also been successfully used through the integration of
safeguarding officers within the specialist police gang enforcement teams. These safeguarding officers work with
partners to support those young or vulnerable people who are swept up in enforcement activity against higher up
County Line gang members.
The Partnership has recently launched Operation Trespass in response to targeting cuckooing and County Lines.
Our community Officers here in UDC will be supporting this operation and will be receiving appropriate training.

Youth
Hate Crime
Following discussions within the CSP the UDC community development officer for young people, John Starr,
contacted the Hate Crime Lead for West Essex where opportunities to work together on future projects was
discussed. A bid to run some diversity workshops at Saffron Walden County High school has been submitted for
consideration in the 2021/22 funding round.
Youth Council
Work continues to re-establish the Youth Council with a recruitment campaign in schools. Existing members are
maintaining their current positions and continue to represent young people in the Community Stakeholder forum
and the Climate change and mental health working groups are ready to work on the ongoing projects paused by
Covid 19. I have also suggested within Cabinet for each cabinet member to become a mentor for members of our
Youth Council. These are very early days but over the next few weeks it is my intention to progress this with our
community development officer for young people.
Youth Initiatives Working Group (the YIWG)
As I am sure you are all aware, I have a passion about the youth of our district and how best we can provide for
them now and in the future. I believe for far too long we as adults have made decisions on their behalf without
really listening to them and understanding what they would like. I truly believe that to be wrong and we must
rectify that.
You will be aware I voiced my concerns about the consultation process for the Local Plan in the debates initiated
at the Community Stakeholder Forum, whereby albeit there was representation on that forum from the youth
council. I nevertheless felt there should be a wider dialogue with younger people. Our two consultants from the
East of England Local Government Association intimated we should be looking to consult with those who
traditionally are hard to locate or do not normally take part. I am please to say that our Local Plan Team, in
particular Sarah Nicholas recognised this.
Moving on, The YIWG has met twice this quarter once to finish up this year’s funding round of distributing financial
support to youth organisation across Uttlesford. They also picked up the idea of running a series of summer events
to act as a catalyst to re-engage with young people in the locality of an event. It was an opportunity to enable us
to listen to the needs and aspirations of our youngster. I have sent a letter to Parish and Town Councils and
stakeholders/partners with the intention of setting up a working group to be established to take this forward.
5

Page 100

I am taking this opportunity of writing to you as the Uttlesford District Councillor who holds the Cabinet
Portfolio position for Communities, Youth, Public Safety & Emergency Planning. I particularly would like to
concentrate on the young person’s aspect of my role.
The last 12-months have been unprecedented times. We have all had to negotiate unchartered waters and
the effects of the deadly virus have left many scars. Some of us have coped better than others but we must
all recognize there will be those who will need our continued support, I would suggest none more so than our
young people. They have faced isolation, loneliness, and loss of connection with friends, a loss of routine and
challenges accessing support.
There are now grounds over the coming months for optimism in dealing with the pandemic as the vaccination
program continues to gather pace. We can look forward to the longer daylight hours and some summer sun.
I believe we should also give young people grounds for optimism about their mental well-being, and we
should try to ensure that they live in a society where they feel fully appreciated and supported.
Our young people will need to catch up socially and emotionally, to feel safe, to have opportunities to have
fun, to do the things they enjoy, rather than have additional pressures heaped upon them. We have a
responsibility to them to make sure they know where and how to find support.
I am pleased to report we as a District Council have recognized our responsibility to play our part in this
support. At a recent meeting of the Full Council a thumbs up was given to incorporating the subject into the
Corporate Plan for 2021-22. Our intention being to: Provide opportunities for young people and in so doing enable young people to be able to engage with their
local community and do things that interests them, keeps them safe, makes them happy and supports
improved mental wellbeing. To overall support and inspire young people to raise their aspirations and reach
their full potential. We will work with Town and Parish Councils and voluntary sector partners to help explore
youth provision in their areas along with working in partnership with the county youth service and schools etc.
We recognise that no organisation can do this alone. The key to success will be approaching this as a
Partnership of multi agencies working as a team towards a common goal. We touched upon this at a recent
meeting of the Youth Initiatives Working Group and at a ‘brainstorming’ session within our own Communities
team. This generated a vision to plan for a series of summer events for young people across Uttlesford – with
a theme of labelling it as a “Summer spectacular”. In essence the seed is sown.
The main objective for these events being to re-establish contact with young people after this lengthy period
of lockdowns. We would be looking to provide an environment where it is safe for those taking part, with the
emphasis on engaging activities than are fun yet giving agencies the opportunity to engage with them and
thereby hopefully assess needs for their services, as we enter the recovery stages of CV-19.
At this stage we are asking partners to commit to supporting these events. As I have mentioned already, no
one organisation can deliver this and as such we would hope you will become a stakeholder and assist in the
planning and resourcing of the programme. It is hoped that we will deliver between 4 and 6 events during
the summer holidays, exact dates, times, and venues to be agreed. We hope this will lead to a core offer
delivered by locality wide agencies as well as local additions to each venue.
I do sincerely hope you will be able to agree to be part of this project. We will be setting up a working group
of partners to plan, market and deliver the project imminently so I would be most grateful if you could let us
know of your wish to be involved as soon as possible.

6

Page 101

I would very much hope that all members could put to one side their political differences and join me in supporting
and advertising this initiative within your respective communities. I am pleased to report that Great Dunmow
Town Council has already pledged their support. Let us not forget the young people of today are our future. We
have a duty as mere temporary custodians of Uttlesford that we hand them a future not of dreams but a reality.
And who knows in years to come they will say thank you.
Finally I would also like to urge members of our Local Plan Leadership Group (LPLG) to take note and seriously
consider within their deliberations what our young people tell us when we engage with them. May I further
suggest members of the group might wish to consider attending one or more of our events with the view of
discussing such matters with those who participate in these gatherings.
EALC Youth Participation Conference
The Community Development Officer (Young people) represented the District Council at the Essex Association of
Local Councils (EALC) Youth Participation conference on the 28th April and presented a brief history of the
Uttlesford Youth Council and some ideas on how Parish and Town councils can reach out to young people and
improve participation. I too attended this meeting and was the only district councillor from across the whole of
Essex present. I may well be accused of being biased but I felt our UDC officer (John Star) gave the best
presentation at the conference.

Safeguarding
There has been an increase in concerns around the elderly population and poor mental health. As a result, our
UDC safeguarding officer (Fleur Brookes) has carried out several visits and appropriate referrals have been made.
Operation Henderson, (Child Sexual Exploitation (CSE) Awareness outreach work), will be going ahead for the week
beginning the 31st May. The safeguarding officer will be working with Essex Police and will visit several train
stations in the district on the 4th June 2021. This will be accompanied by a publicity campaign promoted with
posters and digital leaflets. This will help to ensure that taxi operators are aware of reporting processes for CSE
concerns.
Work continues with UDC housing colleagues (including Housing Associations) about those residents who are
victims of domestic violence and reside in our district. The Multi Agency Risk Assessment Conference (MARAC) is
now attended by the relevant officers for those living in Uttlesford, The MARAC is a meeting where information is
shared on the highest risk Domestic Abuse cases between representatives of local police, health child protection,
housing practitioners, probation and other specialists from the statutory and voluntary sectors.
A successful application for funding to Stansted Airport in 2020 by Next Chapter (commissioned service for
domestic abuse) has resulted in a dedicated domestic abuse adviser for the district. This part time post is working
closely with housing and community safety colleagues.

Colin Day
District Councillor representing Great Dunmow South & Barnston Ward
Cabinet member with the portfolio for Communities, Youth, Public Safety, Emergency Planning, and liaison with
the Police & Fire Service

7

Page 102

